
 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

JULY 15, 2014 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the June 30, 2014 Board of 
City Commission meeting/ 

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
F. BIDS: 

1. Consider award of bid for Street Improvement District 190, Project 
2014-02(Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 3rd Addition). 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider approval of monthly bills. 
2. Consider for approval rezoning of Lots 2-4, Block 1 Lakewood 

Commercial Park. 
3. Consider approval of games of chance for American Foundation for 

Suicide Prevention at Prairie West Golf Course on July 17, 2014. 
4. Consider approval of the pledge of securities reports as required by 

NDCC 21-04. 
5. Consider approval of site authorization for Horse Race ND at Bar M 

Steakhouse from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. 
6. Consider approval of Property Tax Exemption for improvements to 

Commercial & Residential Buildings – Creative Construction. 
7. Approve amendment to Engineering Service Agreement with 

Wenck and Associates for increased work required to design 
Roughriders Street Improvement Project. 

 
H. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Consider street repair work on 37th Ave NW and overlay on Old 
Red Trail. 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

July 15, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

 
2. Consider Growth Fund Committee recommendation on Storefront 

Improvement Application for 306 W Main by Eve Kostelecky/BREA 
boutique 

3. Consider Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for design of 
water distribution system improvements.  

4. Consider commission portfolio assignments. 
 
J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. Second consideration and final passage of Ordinance 1186 
annexing land in Section 3, Township 138 North, Range 81 West. 

 
K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. August 5, 2014 
2. August 19, 2014 
3. September 2, 2014 – 5 p.m. start 
 

M. ADJOURN 
 
 
 

Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at 
Mandan City Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of 
citizens throughout the City. Individuals wishing to address the Board are 
encouraged to make arrangements with the Board President or the City 
Administrator prior to the meeting. Comments should be made to the Board and 
not to individuals in the audience and be related to City operations and programs. 
The Board will not hear personal complaints against any person connected with 
the City. If a citizen would like to add a topic to the agenda, arrangements must 
be made in advance with the City Administrator or Board President. The Board 
reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time allowed for public participation. 
The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson. 
 

 
 
 
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of June 30, 2014 

Page 1 of 6 

 The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on June 30, 

2014 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota. 

Commissioners present were Van Beek, Tibke, Rohr, and Braun. Department Heads 

present were Finance Director Welch, City Administrator Neubauer, Director of Public 

Works Wright, Fire Chief Nardello, Business Development and Communications 

Director Huber, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth, Planner Decker, Assessor 

Shaw, and Building Official Lalim. Absent:  Police Chief Bullinger and City Attorney 

Brown.   

 

B.         APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   Commissioner Braun motioned to approve the 

Agenda as presented.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  The motion received 

unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed.   

 

C.         PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:  Mayor Van Beek invited anyone to come 

forward to address items on the Agenda.  A second announcement was made to come 

forward to speak for or against items on the Agenda.  Hearing none, this portion of the 

Public Communications forum was closed.   

 

D. MINUTES: 

1.        Consider approval of the following minutes from the Board of City Commission 

regular meeting held June 17, 2014. Commissioner Braun moved to approve the minutes 

as presented. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous 

approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

E.         PUBLIC HEARING: 

1.        Consideration of request to vacate portion of Viewpoint Lane (see R&O #2). 

Principal Planner Decker reviewed with the Board a request to vacate portion of 

Viewpoint Lane.   He stated that this is located in the Big Sky Development and they 

previously created a re-plat for this area but they failed to do the official vacation of the 

existing right-of-way.  This is a catch-up item based on what they had done previously.  

The plan is to convert this piece of right-of-way to a utility and access easement because 

it only provides access to one property to the east.  It is not a through street and that’s 

why it was originally re-platted.  This action will match that re-plat.   

 

Mayor Van Beek stated this is a public hearing and invited anyone to come forward to 

speak for or against the request to vacate portion of Viewpoint Lane.  A second 

announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against the request to vacate. 

Hearing none, this portion of the Public Hearing was closed.   

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the request to vacate portion of Viewpoint Lane, 

Big Sky Subdivision.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

2.        Consideration of request to vacate portion of 11th Ave. SW (see R&O #3). 

Principal Planner Decker reviewed with the Board a request to vacate a portion of 11th 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of June 30, 2014 

Page 2 of 6 

Ave. SW.  He indicated that the adjoining property owner is planning to sell their 

property. In researching the records of the boundaries of the property they found that 

when abandonment of 11
th

 Avenue occurred they missed a 40’ portion in the lower right 

corner. This is a follow-up to clean up the abandonment.  There are several small narrow 

lots in this subdivision.  This is a small piece of the lot that was left over.   

 

Mayor Van Beek stated this is a public hearing and invited anyone to come forward to 

speak for or against the request to vacate a portion of 11th Ave. SW.  A second 

announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against the request to vacate. 

Hearing none, this portion of the Public Hearing was closed.   

 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the request to vacate portion of 11th Ave. SW 

located adjacent to Lots 9 and 10, Block 14, Mandan Meads Subdivision  

 

Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed. 

 

F.         BIDS: 

1.         Consider award of bid for Street Improvement District 191, Project 2014-

04(Lincoln Ridge Estates 6
th

 Addition). Planning & Engineering Director Froseth 

reviewed with the Board a request to award the bid for Street Improvement District 191, 

Project 2014-04 (Lincoln Ridge Estates 6
th

 Addition).  Planning & Engineering Director 

Froseth stated that two bids were received for this project.  Northern Improvement 

Company was the low bidder for the amount of $195,217.50.   The Engineer’s estimate 

was $163,522.50.  The bid was 19.6% higher than the engineer’s estimate for this project.  

The construction costs of the project is $195,217.50 plus engineering and administrative 

costs of $68,326.13 for a total cost of $263,543.63.  The project will be paid for by 

special assessments from the 16 benefiting properties estimated to be $16,471.48 per lot.   

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the bid award for Street Improvement District 

191, Project 2014-04 (Lincoln Ridge Estates 6
th

 Addition) to Northern Improvement 

Company was the low bidder for the amount of $195,217.50 and approve the Resolution 

approving contractor and contractor’s bond.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.   

 

Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner 

Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

2.         Consider award of bid for Street Improvement District 192, Project 2014-06(West 

Hills Estates 3
rd

 Addition). Planning & Engineering Director Froseth reviewed with the 

Board a request to award the bid for Street Improvement District 192, Project 2014-06 

(West Hills Estates 3
rd

 Addition).  He stated that two bids were received for this project.  

Northern Improvement Company was the low bidder for the amount of $252,769.30.   

The Engineer’s estimate was $193,835.50.  The bid was 30.4 % higher than the 

engineer’s estimate for this project.  The construction costs of the project is $252,769.30                     

plus engineering and administrative costs of $88,469.26 for a total cost of approximately 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of June 30, 2014 

Page 3 of 6 

$341,238.56. The project will be paid for by special assessments from the 13 benefiting 

properties estimated to be $26,249.12 per lot.  Concern was expressed about the 

assessments in the amounts over $20,000.  Commissioner Tibke stated that there are 

meetings scheduled the latter part of this year to start discussion with the developers, 

contractors and city staff to come up with policies addressing who should be responsible 

for the assessed costs. 

 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the bid award for Street Improvement District 

192, Project 2014-06 (West Hills Estates 3
rd

 Addition) to Northern Improvement 

Company the low bidder for the amount of $252,769.30 and approve the Resolution 

approving Contract and Contractor’s Bond. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  

Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner 

Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.         Consider award of bid for Street Improvement District 193, Project 2014-

08(Midway 14
th

 Addition). Planning & Engineering Director Froseth reviewed with the  

Board a request to award the bid for Street Improvement District 193, Project 2014-

08(Midway 14
th

 Addition). He stated that two bids were received for this project.  

Mariner Construction was the low bidder for the amount of $213,498.49. The Engineer’s 

estimate was $175,404.00.  The bid was 21.7% higher than the engineer’s estimate for 

this project.  The construction costs of the project is $213,498.49 plus engineering and 

administrative costs of $74,724.47 for a total cost of $288,222.96.  The property is zoned 

commercial so the project will be paid for by special assessments from the 6 benefiting 

lots estimated at $.053 per sq. ft.  This is a bid for Phase 1 of the project.  Phase 2 is 

pending at this time.  Traffic on commercial lots determines how the costs are assessed.   

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the bid award for Street Improvement District 

193, Project 2014-08 (Midway 14
th

 Addition) to Mariner Construction the low bidder for 

the amount of $213,498.4930 and approve the Resolution approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:   

 

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.         Consider approval of low bid for resurfacing projects bid through the NDDOT. 

(9
th

 Avenue NE, Longspur and 24
th

 Avenue SE, 40
th

 Avenue SE).  Planning & Engineering 

Director Froseth reviewed with the Board a request to award the bid for three resurfacing 

projects bid through the NDDOT. They were bundled into one project.  (9
th

 Avenue NE, 

Longspur and 24
th

 Avenue SE, 40
th

 Avenue SE).  He stated there were two bids received 

for this project.  Mariner Construction was the low bidder for the amount of $882,099.96.  

The bid was 4.4% under the Engineer’s Estimate.  The projects under this project are the 

9th Avenue NE and 24
th

 and Longspur by the race track and Dacotah Speedway Park.  

Also included is 40
th

 Avenue SE on Memorial Highway to South Bay Drive.  An award 

letter was received from the DOT for these projects.  The date of completion of the 

projects is October 31, 2014.   

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of June 30, 2014 

Page 4 of 6 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the bid award for resurfacing projects bid in 

conjunction with the NDDOT. (9
th

 Avenue NE, Longspur and 24
th

 Avenue SE, 40
th

 

Avenue SE) to Mariner Construction the low bidder for the amount of $882,099.96.  

Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed. 

 

G.        CONSENT AGENDA 

1.         Consider authorizing a work change order on Street Improvement District No. 

179, Project No. 2013-10 (Meadow Ridge 3
rd

 Addition). 

2.         Consider for approval replat of Lots 3A through 3H of Lot 3, Block 4 Heart Ridge 

Addition. 

3.         Consider for approval a setback variance for Lot 1, Block 1 Developers West 

Acres 2
nd

 Addition. 

4.         Consider new Class E Liquor license for Bar M Steakhouse, LLC at 2815 

Memorial Hwy. formerly Dean’s Steakhouse. 

5.         Consider authorizing a work change order on Street Improvement District No. 

178, Project No. 2013-04 (Keidel’s South Heart Terrace Phase IV). 

6.          Consider authorizing a work change order on Street Improvement District No. 

185, Project No. 2013-19 (Heart Ridge 2
nd

 Addition). 

7.          Consider authorizing a work change order on Street Improvement District No. 

176, Project No. 2012-20 (Lakewood 6
th

 & 7th Addition). 

8.          Consider request from the Building Inspection Department to destroy old 

documents in accordance with the Records Management and Retention Plan. 

9.          Consider approval of Engineering Service Agreement with KLJ to provide 

construction engineering services for resurfacing projects bid through the NDDOT (9
th

 

Avenue NE, Longspur and 24
th

 Avenue SE, 40
th

 Avenue SE). 

10.        Consider budget amendment to transfer funds from salary to equipment for 

program coordinator. 

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.   

Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed. 

 

H.        OLD BUSINESS: 

 

I.          NEW BUSINESS: 

1.         Consider authorizing a work change order on Street Improvement District No. 

177, Project No. 2012-22 (Meadows 6
th

 Addition). Planning & Engineering Director 

Froseth reviewed with the Board a request for  the  authorization of  a work change order 

on Street Improvement District No. 177, Project No. 2012-22 (Meadows 6
th

 Addition). 

This is one of the projects not completed in 2013.  This request is to extend the date of 

July 5, 2014, to July 20, 2014, to complete a surface lift and September 1, 2014 to 

complete the chip seal. Northern Improvement was the only company that submitted a 

bid on this project last year and the bid opening for it was held August 23, 2013. They 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of June 30, 2014 

Page 5 of 6 

were not awarded a contract until September.  Director Froseth stated that without their 

bid the project would likely be further behind.  He recommended denying the request for 

the extension because the commencement of this project does not contractually depend 

on the completion of other projects.   

 

Commissioner Tibke moved to deny the request authorizing a work change order on 

Street Improvement District No. 177, Project No. 2012-22 (Meadows 6
th

 Addition)  

for completion date of July 20, 2014, for Surface Lift and September 1, 2014 for 

completion of chip sealing.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  

Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed.   

 

2.         Consider authorizing a work change order on Street Improvement District No. 

181, Project No. 2013-15 (Meadows 7
th

 Addition). Planning & Engineering Director 

Froseth reviewed with the Board a request for the authorization of a work change order 

on Street Improvement District No. 181, Project No. 2013-15 (Meadows 7
th

 Addition. 

This project is a neighbor to Meadows 6
th

 Addition and the request is similar.  This 

request is to extend the date of July 5, 2014, to July 20, 2014, to complete a surface lift 

and September 1, 2014 to complete the chip seal. Northern Improvement was the only 

company that submitted a bid on this project last year and that the bid opening for it was 

held July 19, 2013, and they were not awarded a contract until August.  Director Froseth 

stated that without their bid the project would likely be further behind.  He recommended  

denying the request for the extension because the commencement of this project does not 

contractually depend on the completion of other projects.   

 

Commissioner Braun moved to deny the request authorizing a work change order on 

Street Improvement District No. 181, Project No. 2013-15 (Meadows 7
th

 Addition) for 

completion date of July 20, 2014, for Surface Lift and September 1, 2014 for completion 

of chip sealing. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

J.          RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1.         First consideration of Ordinance 1186 annexing land in Section 3, Township 138 

North, Range 81 West.  Principal Planner Decker stated this matter relates to the previous 

discussion of assessment district costs.  This is an attempt to lower the per lot assessment 

by widening the area of the storm drainage and costs.  This area would normally have 

been annexed at a later date as development of this area occurred, but the storm drainage 

costs are pushing those assessments on the existing currently planned section upward.  By 

annexing this now, draining assessments can be spread over a larger area.   

 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the First consideration of Ordinance 1186 

annexing land in Section 3, Township 138 North, Range 81 West. Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: 

Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of June 30, 2014 

Page 6 of 6 

2.         Consideration of resolution vacating portion of Viewpoint Lane. 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the resolution vacating portion of Viewpoint 

Lane. Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: 

Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.         Consideration of resolution vacating portion of 11
th

 Avenue SW. 

Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the resolution vacating portion of 11
th

 Avenue 

SW.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: 

Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  

Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.         Resolution for City Commission to grant property tax exemptions for 

improvements to existing commercial and residential structures.  City Assessor Shaw 

stated according to NDCC 57-02.2 guidelines require that the governing body of the 

property within city limits must have a resolution in place to allow the remodeling 

exemptions for commercial and residential properties.  The resolution will require all  

applications for remodeling to be brought forth to the City Commission for review and/or 

approval once an application has been processed with the Assessor’s Office and it has 

been deemed that the property improvements qualify for the exemption.   

 

Commissioner Braun moved to approve the resolution for the City of Mandan to grant 

property tax exemptions for improvements to existing commercial and residential 

structures. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Frank:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

K.         OTHER BUSINESS   

1.          Mayor Van Beek reminded citizens that shooting fireworks is only allowed on 

July 2, 3, and 4.  The fine for shooting fireworks outside of those dates is set at $75.00. 

 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 

Commissioner Rohr moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:05 p.m. Commissioner Braun 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed. 

 

   

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 

 Arlyn Van Beek,  

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 
 

 



  

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  This is a review and possible award of bids for Street 

Improvement District No. 190, Project 2014-02 (Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 3
rd

 

Addition). 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  We received two bids on July 8 for the project 

and Mariner Construction was the low bidder.  The bid amount was $1,609,514.53.  

The Engineer' s estimate was $1,501,155.00.   The bid is 7.2% higher than the 

engineer’s estimate.  

 

At the June 17
th

 meeting, the City Commission requested that the developer provide a 

letter of credit for the cost of development above $30,000 per lot for the street portion of 

the project and for the entire amount of the storm sewer improvements. Since then, the 

developer has petitioned the property he owns to the south of this development so that a 

portion of storm sewer that would benefit that area can be assessed to it. A letter of credit 

has yet to be provided. Based on the bid amount, we would recommend the following 

details of the letter of credit to be provided.  

 

Total amount of storm sewer = 573,099.63(construction bid) x 1.35(estimated 

contingency, engineering, and admin)  =  $773,684.50 Provided. The timing of the 

release of letter of credit funds would still need to be detailed.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Bid Tabulation 

2. Page 5 of June 17th Meeting Minutes 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: July 10, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider award of bid and approving Resolution 

Approving Contract and Contractor’s Bond for 

Street Improvement District No. 190, Project 

2014-02(Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 3
rd

 

Addition). 

 

 

  

BID No. 1  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 190, Project 2014-02(Keidel’s 

South Heart Terrace 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 2 of 7 

3. District Map 

4. Resolution approving Contractor and Contractor’s Bond 

              

FISCAL IMPACT:   The Project will be paid for by special assessments from the 

benefiting properties within the District. The construction cost of the project is 

$1,609,514.53 plus the engineering and administrative cost of $563,330.09 totaling 

$2,172,844.62. The special assessments will be assessed to the benefitting property.  

These items would be entirely special assessed to the benefitting properties.  There are 50 

lots within this special assessment district which would be equally assessed on the street 

improvements approximately $27,983.20 each.  The storm water costs would be shared 

by all property within the district at an approximate cost of 22 cents per square foot.  This 

additional cost per lot would range from $2,809.18 for the smallest lot to $6,089.16 for 

the largest lot based on the square footage of the lot.  The unplatted parcel of property of 

55.57 acres would have approximately $532,538.40 in specials assessed to it. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   These documents have been forwarded to the City Attorney for his  

   review.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  We would recommend awarding the project contingent 

upon receiving the letter of credit. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to award the bid to Mariner Construction as the low 

bidder of Street Improvement District 190 Project 2014-02 (Keidel’s South Heart 

Terrace 3
rd

 Addition) in the amount of $1,609,514.53 and approve the Resolution 

approving Contract and Contractor’s Bond contingent on the letter of credit being 

provided.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 190, Project 2014-02(Keidel’s 

South Heart Terrace 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 190, Project 2014-02(Keidel’s 

South Heart Terrace 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 4 of 7 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 190, Project 2014-02(Keidel’s 

South Heart Terrace 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 5 of 7 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 190, Project 2014-02(Keidel’s 

South Heart Terrace 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 6 of 7 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 190, Project 2014-02(Keidel’s 

South Heart Terrace 3
rd

 Addition). 

Page 7 of 7 
 

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING CONTRACT AND CONTRACTOR’S BOND FOR  

STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 190 

(Project No. 2014-02) 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of the City of Mandan, North Dakota 

(the “City”), as follows: 

 

 1. It is hereby found and determined that this Board has heretofore 

caused Notice for Advertisement for Bids to be made for an improvement 

Street Improvement District No. 190 of said City, and has duly and 

publicly opened and considered said bids received pursuant to said Notice. 

 

 2. Said improvement is hereby ordered to be constructed in 

accordance with the plans and specifications therefore as heretofore 

adopted by this Board pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by this Board. 

 

 3. It is hereby found and determined that the lowest responsible 

bidder for various categories of the work, material and skill required for 

said improvement is Mariner Construction whose bid provides for the 

construction of said improvement at a total estimated base price of 

$1,609,514.53. 

 

 4. The President of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan and City Auditor are hereby authorized and directed to make and 

enter into a contract with said bidder on the part of the City, in the form 

prescribed by Sections 40-22-35 and 40-22-35, N.D.C.C. as amended, 

provided that said bidder shall within ten (10) days from this date execute 

said contract and a construction bond conditioned in accordance with the 

provisions of Sections 40-22-30 and 40-22-32 of said Code. 

       

Dated this 15
th

 day of July, 2014 

 

 

                                                                        _________________________                                             

      Arlyn Van Beek, President of the 

      Board of City Commissioners 

 

Attest: 

                                               

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

The area is currently zoned MA which does not allow residential uses.  The proposal is to rezone 

the area to CB that does allow residential uses. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 

The area backs up to a waterway and is across the street from the Mandan Raging Rivers 

Waterpark.  The area to the west, south and east is all zoned CB.  The area to the north is zoned 

MA.  The proposal is to develop the area primarily with multi-family residential units (duplex & 

4 plex).  A small area facing the waterpark will be developed with commercial structures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Location Map 

2. Parcel Map 
3. Planning and Zoning staff report 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

The Planning and Zoning Commission voted unanimously at their June 23, 2014 meeting to 

recommend approval of this request with the stipulation that the residential portion is limited to 

multi-family structures with no single family lots or structures.  Staff recommends approval of 

this request. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   

Move to approve rezoning of Lots 2-4, Block 1 Lakewood Commercial Park from MA to CB 

with the stipulation that there are no single family lots or single family structures. 

 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: June 24, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker 

SUBJECT: Consider for approval rezoning of Lots 2-4, Block 

1 Lakewood Commercial Park 

 

  

Consent No. 2 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Approval of rezoning of Lots 2-4, Block 1 Lakewood Commercial Park 

Page 2 of 6 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Approval of rezoning of Lots 2-4, Block 1 Lakewood Commercial Park 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Approval of rezoning of Lots 2-4, Block 1 Lakewood Commercial Park 

Page 4 of 6 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Approval of rezoning of Lots 2-4, Block 1 Lakewood Commercial Park 

Page 5 of 6 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Approval of rezoning of Lots 2-4, Block 1 Lakewood Commercial Park 

Page 6 of 6 

 

Mandan Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda 
Item 

For Meeting on June 23, 2014 
Mandan Engineering and Planning Office Report 

Lakewood Commercial Park Zone Change 
Requested Action 

Change zoning on various lots 

 
Application Details 

Applicant Owner Subdivision Legal Description 

Wade Vogel, 
Premier 
Homes 

SOL, LLC & Prairie 
East, LLC 

Lakewood 
Commercial Park 

Lots 2-4, Block 1 Lakewood 
Commercial Park 

Location Proposed Land Use Parcel Size Number of Lots 

West side of 46
th

 Ave. SE south of 
21

st
 St. SE. 

Duplex, Four-plex & 
commercial 

11.24 Acres 3 

Existing Land 
Use 

Adjacent Land Uses 
Current 
Zoning 

Proposed 
Zoning 

Adjacent Zoning 

vacant Residential & commercial MA CB CB & MA 

Fees Date Paid 
Adjacent Property Notification 

Sent 
Legal Notices Published 

250 5/21/14 7/7/2014 7/4 & 7/11 

 
Project Description 

Mandan Raging Rivers Waterpark is across the street to the east.  Northern and western 
boundary is one of the recreational water channels.  There is multi-family along part of the 
southern boundary. 

Agency & Other Department Comments 

Limit commercial driveway access to common driveway.  Will need a street name.  Will need 1 
or 2 fire hydrants within complex. 

Engineering & Planning Staff Comments 

 
Engineering & Planning Recommendation 

 
Proposed Motion 

Based on staff report and hearing no objection, move to recommend approval of rezoning for 
Lots 2-4, Block 1 Lakewood Commercial Park 
 

 



IConsent No.3
LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
NORTH DAKOTA OFFICE OF ATIORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN 17926 (10/2012)

For a raffle or calendarrarne, read"lnformation Required to be Preprinted on a Standard RaffleTicket"below.

~·-~/~~:"iii~~~; v
Type: ~ Local Permit · 0 Charity Local Permit

IPermit Number

2014-35
Nameof Organization Dale(s)Authorized (Read instruction2)

American Foundation For Suicide Prevention
Contact Person Business Phone Number 7/17/2014 to 7/17/2014

Micki Savelkoul Beginning Ending
MailingAddress Cily IState IZip Code

600 East Blvd Avenue Dept 301 Bismarck NO 58505-0000
Site Name SiteAddress

Prairie West Golf Course 2709 t.onosour Trail
City Stale ZIP Code County

Mandan NO 58554-00( Morto n
Check the Game(s)Authorized: ' Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels maybe Conducted only by a Charity Local Permit.

o Bingo o Rarne o Calendar Rarne o Sports Pool o Poker' o Twenly-one' o Paddlewheels '

Restriction:

Requirement: For a "Charity Local Permit," the organization must file a "Report on a Charity Local Permit" with Ihe city or countyauditor and Officeof
Attorney General within 30 days of the event.

Date ISigna~~CityAaocounty Auditor Printed Name of City or CountyAuditor IAuditorTelephoneNumber

6/30/2014 /' ....... O. i Jay Gruebele (701) 667-3250

Please see the instructionso~ac~e .Of this formon how to complete the Permit.

____ _ _ _______ _ _ ______~~ng lhi~~ _

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RA FFL E TICKET:

1. Name of organization;
2. Ticket num ber;
3. Price of the ticket , includ ing any discounted price;
4. Prize, description of an optional pr ize selectable by a winning player, or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars . However, if there is insufficient
space on a ticket to list each minor pr ize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars, an organization may state the
total number of minor prizes and their total retail price;

5, For a licensed orga nizat ion, print "office of attorney genera l" and license numbe r. For an organ ization that has a permit, print
the authorizing city or county and perm it num ber;

6. A statement that a person is or is not require d to be present at a drawing to win;
7. Date and time of the draw ing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and time of that

announcement. For a calendar raffle , if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the
draw ing ;

8, Location and street address of the drawing;
9. If a merchandise prize require s a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a statement that a winning player is

or is not liable for sales or use tax ;
10. If a purchase of a ticket or winn ing prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statement that a person must be at least

,_. _" years of age to buy a ticket , or win a prize ;
11. A statement that a purch ase of the ticket is not a charitable donation;
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize , a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won

and odd s of winning the prize based on numbers of chances; and
13. If a prize is live beef or dairy cattl e, horse, bison , sheep or pig, a statement that the winning player may convert the prize to a

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal or four thousand dollars .



./

·0 CharityLocal Permit (ono event per year)o Local Permit

APPLICATION FOR A LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT
OFFICE OF ATIORNEY GENERAL
SFN 9330 (9-2009)

Application for:

Name of Non-profit Organization Date(s) of Activity

}l'~ (;(" "" ["" ... (k~,t" \(', 5u..iL' CAt ·~(w .,,\-r".... I I JI! JLI to '---

peh~'!Crp,onsible for the Gaming Operation and lhe Disbursement of Net Income Tille Business Phone Number

I I <I Sc,Vc.lk(~,.J

B(~~OAd~;S~ ~ \ Vn\ AVL b('~ :SO) CllYf < ,
Slate Zip Code

I 6(\'1~nJ JV'D c.xC;u5"
Mailing Address (if difforenl) City State Zip Code

Na8-~f Site Where Game(s) will be Conducted Site Address

c..\ r,e \J.~ bdf. CG\Ar<,c ? 'l OC L()~ (5,~{' ~ I
Cily fl J SiJt Zip CodlI'

C(P1~r h,,,Q,~ r." 5"~<;S L]
Check the Game(s) to be Conducted: • Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conductedonly by a Charity l ocal Permit.

o Bingo ~Rame DCalendar Rame o Sports PoOl o Poker· o Twenty-one· o Paddlewheels·

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIL VALU E OF PRIZES TO BE AWARDED

Game Type Description of Prize Retail Value of
P ri 7A

50J~() V<. ~ Us!\ ~,:~~CA lev

Game Type Description of Pr ize
Retail Value of

Pri7A

(L1m;1512.000 per yo.r)

Total: $

Does Ihe organization presently have a state gaming IIcense?lQ'No 0 Yes - If "Yes," the organization Is not eligible for a local permit or charily local
permit and should cali lhe Office of Attorney General at 1·600-326·9240.

Has the organization received a charity local permit from this or another city or counly for lhe fiscal year July 1 through June 30?~NO DYes . If "Yes,"
lho organization does not qualify for a local permit or charity local permit.

Has the organization received a local permit from lhis or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 30? "bn No 0 Yes - If ·Yes,"
indicate the total value of all prizes previously awarded: S . This amount Is part of the total prize limit of $12,~er year.

culive Officlnl Tille Business Phone Number



:!:iiiiiiririlllll
CITY 0'

MANDA.
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS"

Consent Agenda #4

Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation

MEETING DATE:
PREPARATION DATE:
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT:
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR:
PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:

July 15,2014
July 9, 2014
Finance
Greg Welch, Finance Director
Greg Welch, Finance Director
Pledge of securities reports.

PURPOSE
The City of Mandan is required semiannually to approve pledges of securities reports.

BACKGROUND
Except for the Bank of North Dakota, financial institutions must pledge security for all
public deposits at a ratio of $1.10 for every $1.00 above the FDIC coverage amount.

ATTACHMENTS
• Pledge of securities report from Wells Fargo Bank
• Pledge of securities report from Starion Financial

FISCAL IMPACT
None

STAFF IMPACT
None

LEGAL REVIEW
In accordance with the provisions ofNDCC 21-04.

RECOMMENDATION
To approve the following pledge of securities reports:

• Wells Fargo Bank
• Starion Financial



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: July 15,2014
Subject: Pledge of securities reports.
Page 2 of2

SUGGESTED MOTION
Move to approve the following pledge of securities reports:

• Wells Fargo Bank
• Starion Financial



ST...GBCOACH 8\'fEB?

\'fELLS FARGO BANK, N .....

Confirmation

Repurcha.se "'greement

CITY OF ~IANOAN

205 2ND AVE NW

1-W<DAN NO 58554

ACCOUNT SUNMARY

Date 06/30(2014

Account

ACCOUNT DETAIL

II

Investment

From Date

To Date

Rate

Princi!?al

Interest

Re!?urchasc Agreement

06(30(2014

07(01(2014.

.02000000 %

s 5,908,523 91

s 3.28

RBPURCHASE AOREENENT DETAIL

co.l LacexaLl aed ay $ 222,293 za
FN-30 1IU7035, 0"" 4.00 ,

t~aturity Date 11(01(2013

CUSI? 3138X6Y90

Sequence 0630H

Price 105.276629

Accrued Interest s 710.98

REPURCHASE Jl,GREENENT DETAIL

Collateralized 'y s 5,823,170 ss
ON-II NA1522

% Due 4.00 ,
~''''turity Date 12(01(204.3

CUSI? 36179NVPO

Sequence 063014

Price 107.198194.

Accrued Interest $ 19,412.57

INVESTMEN1'S NOT FDIC INSURED



~.,
BNY MELLON

Broker/Dealer Services
One Wall Street, Fourth Floor
New York, NY 10286

Date: 06/30/14

000058 XBGSC301
ATTN: GREG WELCH, FINANCE DIRECTOR
CITY OF MANDAN
205 2ND AVE NW
MANDAN, ND 58554

Account Id: Tax Id Number:

This advice is supplied as part of the Tri-Party Collateral agreement among
the Customer, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and The Bank of New York Mellon. Any
questions should be directed to Vinnette Frater, Senior Associate,
BDS/Tri-Party Services, (973)569-2411.

As agent we confirm the following collateralized deposit information received
from Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as of close of business the last business day of
the month.

Date: 06/30/14
The collateral segregated on your behalf on 06/30/14 is as follows:

CUSIP DESCRIPTION
3138W9BDI FNMA FNMS 3.5007. 07/01/43

QUANTITY
280,000.00

TOTAL MKT VALUE

MARKET VALUE
278,445.03

278,445.03



JUL/03/2014/THU 10:48 AM Starion Financial 90 FAX No, 7012501444 p, 001/004

~,

Station
FINANCIAL

109 1" St. J\'W Mandan, ND 58554
701·663-6434 '101-661-1619 (fax)

FAX
To: Greg Welch

Company; City of Mandan

Fax #: 701-667-3223

From:

Pages;

Date:

Janice Richter

5

07/02/2014

RE: Pledge Report

The following is the pledge report for the mouth of June 2014, This report lists
all securities currently pledgedfor your deposit accountts),

The pledges are reviewed and approved on a monthly basis by the
Starion Financial Asset/Liability Management Committee and
presented to the Board ofDirectors.

** Ifthere is an increase in the balance of your account(s) prior to the month end check,
please contact us, so that we may increase the amount ofpledging ifnecessary.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 667-1620_

Thank you,

IMPORTANT, This messageintended only for the use of the individualOr entity to which it is addressedand may
contain informationthat is privileged, confidential,and exempt from disclosureunder applicable law. If'the readerof
this messageis not the intended recipient, you ate hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or copyingof
this communicationis strictlyprohibited. If you receive this communication in error, pleasenotify us immediately by
telephoneand return the original message to us at the above addressvia the United StatesPostal Service. Thank you.







IConsent NO.5

GAMING SITE AUTHORIZATION
OFFICE OF ATIORNEY GENERAL
SFN 17996 (02-2011)

G- L _ _ }_
Site License Number

(Attorney General Use Only)

Horse Race North Dakota is hereby authorized to conduct games of
(Full, LegalName of Gaming Organization)

chance under the license granted by the Attorney General of the State of North

locat ion: Bar M Steakhouse the

2815 Memorial Hiohwav Mandan 58554

Dakota at the following

address of which is:
Morton

(County)

Games will be conducted

(Street) (City) (Zip Code)
Date(s) Auth orized: Beginning 7/1/14 Ending _6_/3_0_/1_5 _

Spec ific location where games of chance will be conducted mld played at the site (required):
in the bar and restaurant area. excludino the restrooms .

Number of twenty-one tables (required) (if zero, enter "0") o

RESTRICTIONS : (to be completed ONLY if restr ictions are set by the local governing body)

1. Days of week of gaming operations _

2. Hours of gaming

3. List each specific game type prohibi ted _

Attorney General Date Signature of City/County Auditor Date

INSTRUCTIONS:

PRINT Name 1Official Position of person signing above

1. City/Cou nty Auditors - Retain a copy of the Site Authorization for your files.

2. City/County Auditors - Return the original Site Authorization form to the Organization.

3. Organizations - Send the original, signed , Site Authorization to the Office of Attorney General with any
other app licable licensing forms for final approval.

RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS TO:

Office of Attorney General
Licensing Section
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 125
Bismarck , ND 58505-0040
Telephone: 701-328-2329 OR 800-326-9240



RENTAL AGREEMENT
OFFICE OF ATIORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN 9413 (Rev. 08·2013)

License Number (Office Use Only)

Sile Owner (Lesso r) Site Name Site Phone Number

Bar M Sleakhouse. Lie Bar M Sleakhouse
Site Address ICity State IZip Code County

2815 Memorial HiQhway Mandan NO 58554 Morton
Organization (Lessee) IRental Peri od

Monthly Rent Amount
Horse Race North Dakota 71112014 to 6/30/2015

1. Is Bingo going to be conducted at this site? IRl No 0 Yes
1a. If ' Yes" to number 1 above. is Bingo the primary game conduc ted? $

If "Yes," enter the monthly ren t amount to be paid . Then answer questions 2 • 7 but do not D No D Yes
enter any rem amounts.

2. Is a raffle drawing going to be conducted at this site? ~ No D Yes s

3 . Is ...nze Boatds mvoivlOg a lllsl't:m;ing utl vlce conoucteu at this site? ~ No 0 '(t;J; ~

4. Is Twenty ·One con du cted althis sile ?

IRJ 0 $
Number of Tables wilh wagers up to 55 X Rent per Table s No Yes

Number of Tables wi th wag ers over $5 X Renl per Table S s

5. Is Padd lewheels cond ucted at Ihis site?

~ 0Number of Tables X Rent per Table S No Yes $

6. Is Pull Tabs involving either a jar bar and/or a dispensing dev ice cond ucted at this site? D No (K] Yes

Please check : 0 Jar Bar Only @ Dispensing Device On ly o Jar Bar and Dispensing Device
$ 200.00

Total Monthly Rent

s 200.00

TERMS OF RENTAL AGREEMENT:

This RENTAL AGREEMENT is between the Owner (LESSOR) and Organization (LESSEE) that will be leasing Ihe site to conduct games of chance.

The LESSOR agrees that no game will be directly operated as pa rt of the lessor's busines s.

The LESSOR agrees tha t Ihe (lessor) , (lessor's) spouse, (lesso r's) common household mem bers, (management). (management's) spouse, or an
employee of the lessor wh o Is in a position to approve or deny a lease may not conduc t games at any of the organ iza tion's sues and. except for officers and
board of directors members who did not approve the lease, may not play games at that site. However, a bar employee may redeem a winning pull lab or prize
boards inVOlVing a dispensing device and se ll raffle ucke ts or sports poo l chances on a board on behalf 01an organizatiull.

The LESSOR agrees that the lessor'S on call or tem pora ry or permanent employee will not , directly or indire clly. condu ct games at the site as an employ ee 01
the lessee on the same day Ihe em ployee is working in the area of the bar where alcoholic bever ages are dispensed or consumed.

If the LESSEE provides the Lessor with a tem porary loan of fund s for redeeming pull tabs or prize boards, or botb, Involving a dispensing device. the Lessor
agrees to repay the entire loan Immediately when the lessee discontinues using the device at tho site,

The LES SOR agrees not 10 interfere with or atte mpt to influence the lesse e's se lection of games , determination of prizes, including a bingo jackpot prize, or
disbursement of net pro ceeds .

The LESSOR agrees not 10 loan money 10, provide gaming equipment to, or coun t drop box cash for the lessee .

At the LESSOR'S option, Ihe lessee agrees thai this rent al agreeme nt may be automatically term inated if the lessee's gaming license is suspended at this site
for more than four teen days or revoke d:

Signature of Lesso r Title Date

/g /)

'> L )u',4' (;';k?S'#~/;/~ .r" .t.ci /:J.c:'L.c.-~ ' / /'I

Slg~;;:;ttxecutr;m~~ Till

{N~f~j-
Date

10 ~ J.1-· l </
(over)



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   To consider a 5-year tax exemption for Improvements to a 

Commercial Building pursuant to North Dakota Century Code 57-02.2. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   Creative Construction is asking for up to a 5-year 

tax exemption for improvement on an existing commercial building.   

 

The building is 60’ x 120’ x 16’ metal building known formerly as Century Motors.  The 

renovation will consist of roof repairs, wall renovation, spray foam insulation to roof and 

wall, doors, windows, stairs, the re-pouring of concrete floor at the 12’ x 14’ overhead 

door and apron on east shop side of the building 21’x 70’.  Also plans for installing a new 

heating and air system in the proposed office area, new plumbing, electrical and interior 

finish of the office.  See attachments for full details.   

 

The estimated cost of the project is $273,197.00.   

 

A reassessment of the property was completed on June 18, 2014 with a 2015 assessed 

value at $389,800.  The property will still get the regular increases to the value during the 

exemption period.   

 

This property is also known as Parcel #10093 at 4715 Memorial Hwy. SE on Lot 3, Block 

1, West Bay Estates 3
rd

 addition. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Application, drawings, summary of assessment, proposal and 

pictures of existing and proposed building, purchase agreement, and West Bay Estates 3
rd

 

Addition plat map. 

 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: July 1, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing Dept 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

SUBJECT: Application from Creative Construction for 

Property Tax Exemption for Improvements to 

Commercial and Residential Buildings 

 

 

  

Consent No. 6  

- Revised July 15, 2014 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 2 of 2 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $3,780 per year for the improvements.  The 

building’s value will still be subject to property tax.  

 

STAFF IMPACT:   N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   Municipal Code 14-02-15. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   Approval of a 5-year property tax exemption for Creative 

Construction due to meeting all criteria under State Statute 57-02.2. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   A motion to approve the 5-year remodeling tax exemption by 

Creative Construction, with the project location of 4715 Memorial Hwy. SE, due to 

meeting all criteria under the State Statute 57-02.2 and with the condition of installation 

of an electronic handicap accessible entrance door that is required on every building open 

to the public that has received public funds in any form whatsoever as stated in the 

provisions of the City of Mandan Ordinance #1048; Municipal Code 14-02-15. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   To consider a 5-year tax exemption for Improvements to a 

Commercial Building pursuant to North Dakota Century Code 57-02.2. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   Creative Construction is asking for up to a 5-year 

tax exemption for improvement on an existing commercial building.   

 

The building is 60’ x 120’ x 16’ metal building known formerly as Century Motors.  The 

renovation will consist of roof repairs, wall renovation, spray foam insulation to roof and 

wall, doors, windows, stairs, the re-pouring of concrete floor at the 12’ x 14’ overhead 

door and apron on east shop side of the building 21’x 70’.  Also plans for installing a new 

heating and air system in the proposed office area, new plumbing, electrical and interior 

finish of the office.  See attachments for full details.   

 

The cost of the project is $273,197.00.   

 

A reassessment of the property was completed on June 18, 2014 with a 2015 assessed 

value at $389,800.  The property will still get the regular increases to the value during the 

exemption period.   

 

This property is also known as Parcel #10093 at 4720 19
th

 St. SE on Lot 3, Block 1, West 

Bay Estates 3
rd

 addition. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Application, drawings, summary of assessment, proposal and 

pictures of existing and proposed building, purchase agreement, and West Bay Estates 3
rd

 

Addition plat map. 

 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: July 1, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing Dept 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

PRESENTER: Shirley Shaw, City Assessor 

SUBJECT: Application from Creative Construction for 

Property Tax Exemption for Improvements to 

Commercial and Residential Buildings 

 

 

  

Consent No. 6   



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 2 of 20 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Approximately $3,780 per year.  

 

STAFF IMPACT:   N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   Approval of a 5-year property tax exemption for Creative 

Construction due to meeting all criteria under the City of Mandan’s Property Tax 

Exemption for Improvements to a Commercial Property Policy and Guidelines and also 

under State Statute 57-02.2. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   A motion to approve the 5-year tax exemption by Creative 

Construction due to meeting all criteria under the City of Mandan’s Commercial Property 

Tax Exemption Policy and Guidelines and also under State Statute 57-02.2.     

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 3 of 20 

 

    

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 4 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 5 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 6 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 7 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 8 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 9 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 10 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 11 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 12 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 13 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 14 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 15 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 16 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 17 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 18 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 19 of 20 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: 5-Year Ad Valorem Tax Exemption for Creative Construction 

Page 20 of 20 

 

 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approving amendment to Engineering Services 

Agreement with Wenck and Associates, Inc. to add to the total for Design services of 

Roughriders, SID # 195. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Wenck and Associates were selected to provide 

design engineering services for the Street Improvement District No. 195 project 

(Roughriders). During design, it was realized by Wenck that the mill and overlay 

approach was not the best for these streets, thus some additional inspection and design 

work was necessary.  

 

In order to keep the project going, Wenck was instructed by our office to continue 

designing their recommended mine and blend approach to the project. In April, Wenck 

submitted a letter describing the additional work and change in fees for that work 

amounting to $11,870.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1) Fee Increase Justification Letter from Wenck 

2) Consulting Services Agreement   

3) Attachment A, Scope of Services 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   As part of the projects’ total cost, these services would be paid for 

by assessments to benefiting properties. With the added cost, the design of the project 

comes to just under 9% of bid amount. This amount to be included in the project total 

which is to be assessed to benefiting properties.     

    

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: July 11, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider approving amendment to Engineering 

Service Agreement with Wenck Associates, Inc. 

for Street Improvement District 195 

 

  

Consent No. 7 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Consider approving amendment to Engineering Service Agreement with Wenck 

Associates, Inc. for Street Improvement District 195 

Page 2 of 8 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City 

Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the amendment to the Engineering Services 

Agreement for design engineering with Wenck Associates, Inc. for Street Improvement 

District 195.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the amendment to the Engineering Services 

Agreement for design engineering with Wenck Associates, Inc. for Street Improvement 

District 195. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Consider approving amendment to Engineering Service Agreement with Wenck 

Associates, Inc. for Street Improvement District 195 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Consider approving amendment to Engineering Service Agreement with Wenck 

Associates, Inc. for Street Improvement District 195 

Page 4 of 8 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Consider approving amendment to Engineering Service Agreement with Wenck 

Associates, Inc. for Street Improvement District 195 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Consider approving amendment to Engineering Service Agreement with Wenck 

Associates, Inc. for Street Improvement District 195 

Page 6 of 8 

 

 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Consider approving amendment to Engineering Service Agreement with Wenck 

Associates, Inc. for Street Improvement District 195 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 
 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Consider approving amendment to Engineering Service Agreement with Wenck 

Associates, Inc. for Street Improvement District 195 

Page 8 of 8 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

Consider awarding street repair work on 37
th

 Ave NW and overlay on Old Red Trail to 

Northern Improvement Co. through a change order through SID #176, Lakewood 6
th

 and 

7
th

 Addition. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:   

The new grade school north of Old Red Trail on 37
th

 Ave NW is ready to open this fall, 

as you know we had problems on 37
th

 Avenue with wet conditions and all the new 

construction going on in the area and needed to repair the streets in 2012.  The new street 

repairs are holding up great, but we are seeing similar break ups from Old Red Trail north 

to where we began and ended our repairs in 2012. I received two estimates for the work 

from Northern Improvement Co. and Mariner Construction, with Northern Improvement 

Co. being low at $136,437.80.  

 

Also, as part of the project we received two estimates for overlaying Old Red Trail from 

Highland Road to Crown Point Rd.  Patching of the road is being done by Public Works 

crews and the proposed overlay will add the additional strength to get us to the Urban 

Road Project planned for 2016, which includes widening and turn lanes where needed.  

Northern Improvement Co. was low bidder at $118,214.70. 

 

The total of the work proposed would be less than 20% of the original estimate for the 

SID #176 project, as required by century code in order to allow a change order.  

 

To date we have utilized the funding received from the State for roadway repairs for the 

following projects: 

 Overlay of 2
nd

 Street NW from Collins to 6
th

 Ave NW – work done in 2013 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2013 

PREPARATION DATE: July 11, 2013 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright 

SUBJECT: Consider street repair work on 37
th

 Ave NW and 

overlay on Old Red Trail. 

 

  

New Business No. 1 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider street repair work on 37
th

 Ave NW and overlay on Old Red Trail. 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 Overlay of 46
th

 Ave SE from 29
th

 Ave SE to South Bay Dr. SE – work done in 

2013 

 NDDOT overlay projects on 9
th

 Ave NE, 24
th

 Ave SE and Longspur, and 40
th

 Ave 

SE – to be done in 2014 

  

ATTACHMENTS: Estimates, Location Map 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   The City of Mandan received $843,243.59 from the State Treasurer 

and the funds have been placed in the Highway Distribution Fund for use on roadway 

maintenance purposes.  Finance Director Welch indicated after the local share for the 

NDDOT projects, there would be an estimated balance of $369,700 to cover these costs. 

 

STAFF IMPACT: N/A 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: City Attorney Brown has reviewed the item.   

 

RECOMMENDATION: I recommend awarding street repair work on 37
th

 Ave NW and 

overlay on Old Red Trail to Northern Improvement Co. through a change order for SID # 

176, for $254,652.50. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to award street repair work on 37
th

 Ave NW and 

overlay on Old Red Trail to Northern Improvement Co. through a change order for SID # 

176, for $254,652.50. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider street repair work on 37
th

 Ave NW and overlay on Old Red Trail. 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider street repair work on 37
th

 Ave NW and overlay on Old Red Trail. 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider street repair work on 37
th

 Ave NW and overlay on Old Red Trail. 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider street repair work on 37
th

 Ave NW and overlay on Old Red Trail. 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date:  July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider street repair work on 37
th

 Ave NW and overlay on Old Red Trail. 

Page 7 of 7 

 

  



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a recommendation by the Mandan Growth Fund 

(MGF) Committee regarding an application by Eve Kostelecky/BREA for storefront 

improvement matching funds for 306 W Main Street. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The MGF met July 10, 2014 to consider the 

application. Eve Kostelecky and her husband David Albrecht recently purchased the 

building at 306 W Main Street for operation of BREA boutique. Exterior improvements 

included in their Storefront Improvement application are staining of the brick to a red or 

maroon color, new storefront and transom glass with uniform trim and a black metal 

transition between windows, recessed lights above the front door and painting of the 

ceiling and wood above and around the door, replacement of storefront tile with 

metal/wood paneling, stamped concrete at the main entry, a new lighted business sign, 

replacement of the back doors with the addition of a dusk to dawn light, replacement of 

three rear windows and painting or new siding for rear, closed window spaces.  

 

The exterior upgrades have received approval by the Mandan Architectural Review 

Commission at its meeting on July 8, 2014. 

 

The estimated investment in the exterior improvements to street facing sides of the 

building is $$41,424 to $43,424 depending upon the sign selected. Because of the 

possibility for unanticipated costs such as if the front door needs to be replaced to 

accommodate an automatic door opener, the applicant has asked to be approved for up to 

$30,000 in matching funds not to exceed 50% of actual expenditures. The MGF voted 

unanimously with 7 of 9 members present to recommend approval at this amount. 

 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: July 10, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 

Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: Growth Fund Committee Recommendation on 

Storefront Improvement Application  

 

  

New Business No. 2  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: MGF Storefront Application Recommendation 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

The applicant is also planning to replace the building’s roof and to make some interior 

improvements and thus plans to submit a Renaissance Zone application at a future date. A 

Retail and Restaurant Incentive application is also expected for the expanded square 

footage from Brea’s existing location at 906 Second Street NW to this new location. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Kostelecky application. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: Up to $30,000 in matching funds at a 50% match rate subject to 

actual final investment in qualified exterior improvements. The balance in the Growth 

Fund for Storefront Improvement is $87,896, with $60,000 in commitments to two other 

projects approved this year but not yet complete, leaving an uncommitted balance of 

$27,896 plus $673,645 for unspecified types of economic development projects. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  An automatic door is included in the proposal as required. There’s 

also a recipient agreement that calls for a notice of potential lien on the property 

following project completion and issuance of matching funds in the form of a forgivable 

loan. The notice of potential lien requires that the building and improvements remain 

intact for 3 years with funding forgiven on a prorated basis over those three years.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The MGF voted to recommend approval of the application by 

Kostelecky for storefront funds at a 50% match rate up to $30,000.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the storefront improvement application by 

Eve Kostelecky at a 50% match rate to the actual investment, for up to $30,000 in 

matching funds, to be provided as a forgivable loan upon project completion.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



;;s:;z;;;
Clfyor

MANDAN

STOREf~ONTIMPROVEMENT

APPLICATION

PRIMARY CONTACT INFORMATION FOR TI-IIS APPLICATION

Name: S\.1~_~_S=-' t...:....e~{'-~~~=.:· ...:....::1-\- . _

Address: Cf6{g . '~ /~~ s-r!N vV fr1 4AlD/l-N

Phone: ._ - - _ ._ -.__._ - - - Fax: _

E-mail: . _

Applicant Name:
(name of personIentity vl . J.

to f~cei vl< grant) . eV ( __-.!::.~ S'+Q \ .Q0L~ , ~R E..A-:.- _

Property Owner: C v~._~ S \--~.~e 01----:j ~. {Y\VI$) ~ \ .fJ/?-f: (}-.~ T

Property Address: 3 .9"-=' ~ \::.~_T ,,,,AI ('oJ S:~ J:-._·..E_T_· _
Architect/Firm:

(ifapplicable) . _

Description of Property

Current tcnant(s): ~ Commercial

o Residential

/

-~ (2£ A- (CtoJHJNb i'S(J",tH ~v £:)
# occupied: # vacant:

Building History (if available): .SQJ-~,,:eR .5: f\...u'> I'e. DE f A{2 ..trV'.J~ rJr-

OS~ t. f.0r7.l)/~· "t(L~ 'T1--l (Vt ~~:~c. ( J(l12 ) I ~at...}f A ~ ~e(2_0
r" 0 S T- q (> C (l '1,-.\ \.l-( . _

---- - - - - - --- - -.._-- -- -- - ..--- - - - - - - --_ ._ - -

Total Cost of
facade renovation: $ LUI '112 - '"2.. J I 1·/7..

Is the facade renovation part of a larger project?

Yes ~ No, the facade is the only work I am doing D
I f yes, please describe comprehensive project.

""'l::.. \rJ\ u... tSr~ (2)lt¥J'' Ail Nt: ~~4 JrJJ~~jQR_ lP. \?r-::.1"T.& ~Q('\J('- ;:l u...~n-(J1-1 (; B,I ·..;..n (iJ (j C '

,A{)Q ' I~ l. Qct(>':':. SII-J Ie ~£h':!.~i.rA-._~~ !tA~.E ~ (II\ ~ r.J 1\-1t: IY\AII"J F- /,..,Z)IJtZ./ i/'It=w

{>~\t-l'"f . WA ........· ~'<l ffi)N G.~=-_!'!S ~,§_~ AS £~,.tJtJS/lvb YJ.lIC(Z.£ gJtI'O'':,u 1\1 OtIC
"'l-1 E: (~~£ :::-Nt· ~l-'A~\ee , il'.1 '-'\-.-1 c··, ~r-q" FI X7'Va.\:2S I f.2Q I=-,,...fl ,~J11N6 l·'.~D
y") OQ0 r-w \!tZ. ..s AW Nv 6 ~,4!'f b C(?<fF-:-7 PO /)1 ~~P(.A"IS PaR ~'JHE~
Q.E.PI..fl,-<....lt~J b "1·d:: {It:l~ F .



Summary of Existing Condition of Facade: (please attach pictures - Attachment 1)
fA ()f. t") 'I G.L.\..O vJ 1-\.1.' E: ~f?\'(' v:. ~ AIjJ f 'A I Ai V .'V\.- T(l-\ (~ -<, fj()-'<;(~ '2..K -r-I2-A fl.1.

SoThC""'f:. HU:l •.rr w IN C e..."S) 0 r:..:r-tfU 't~ P-A1FO 'B OJ ~ (~OSA-I L. 1IL£ S- UNQR.
v-' /(-{02)'lN.:.s ~ £'xfl:J~fO J\J~r::f"'l ~H£..o r-J~"O ~SIT'"II1N u£.,w£'~r( ">fPfEJ~
~ ~v-..J(2...f<. t-.J /NO"CVJ"'-'$ J ~"'..JNJI L.E.:s Q crl'"TR.ArlC..{;,I 1.}V'fN 'Nb ;--{A-I<OV'l,4~

171 A·, l.'S(..( ' r-~N~ ...: T\v..J '2 £0/ cA-{2..<::J=- FA!':~(.J ......, (J·criA ~tv.~ f...~ ~\bN) t';)'fC ( c:, £ .f)
L...-------------- ---...L.-------------- ---..:::---'L(!)N()"'IT

Summary of Proposed Scope of'Work: (materials, color schemes, etc.) Please attach
colorized drawings that include pre- and post- rehab detail, indicating specifically what will
be modified and how (Attachment 2). Bids or official estimates from licensed commercial
contractors 01' other providers of needed services and materials are requ ired, (Attachment
J)STflI,r-ld''' c, n\£. b£.\~\?- G?...QO/~ ~o~,J J L/UZ <r:. E tAlf.w -Ur S /l.:.iY (NC c,;.--J/"XJ- \r

Vt\ <A.. Po::,f ~~\~') B<- l\-.<.. ..\!. {vl {' -rAL T-(2 (\ N s IT JON ?~ J;;.. £ N vJ 1f'l00 \AI T_

N (; lr.J rl' N D::! "y'~~ ~ J 11-'1 J.-( \~('(\'Vl QA-R-iC ~?r.2:~\'-l '2- e /f21 tv'l Lvp~ < Ll) 1;'J~ '{<.)
~lA:lVler;f) Lj'1~t\L \J:~Nc....R6:·:;-~ \t'> (l.9'p<-(4.( , , G(~"~ (.{ '"'H \..( .>....t tS .f\/Tte. '1
~\-. -rn Nb -I ~\ L ~h ..Lt~ () C; v\l:-; ~ 0 l>t-{J.~ "'~! (;j -n-rf=- ~~.{Z \3 c'A eV- I A'\l~.1tl A-{U ~ Q~.
(2_.11C.~.sJ-E:..O t4. ~ ~, 1:$ ~rl eEl u. Nta I ('I r=.. N\i<li I New iyAqc.. ~lJ rz
N lli\ AN !3y" TW~Q.. I~~tt 9-l SK:. - 04 IN ('( (,t ~~l NEw VI }1...(~v-J..:...~ BA~Of:- DB~t(i£'!lf\A

. 7,n. I .A,..,DfoJ, / .-"/ (~Ct~
U M 'bt:::R S~\<£. H24\-l1 \.,A I"O~ \,1oS {~\J<..f)-'.JJ.. ,a1WJ L_ 1l '- -sr=:.. WI Ttf hlO~O -.-?ik (»1 (p,\..f'\-vt-J

Historic Character: How willp roposed project affect historic character? (if applicable)
WE ,y1 AI} £ A. "SIMPLE: 0 '-' i '-L~AN APPt2:.;) Au·( il' C oJ Q.. \-¥d:i ..:S-eL\ f-Iof;(t G
._~ (y)l:l0'IL.'-j {) i2-ESe.~-S£:.. Tl-i e.. ~t.!..·F-AT \SK3 esc. \:>£S I(:)£'''/ /h .p-., E.A/A{ p-eo.s\'\;-J1
N'D1- ('f) A \?-\ r< (:, (\ \t='eo ,-(2 B'.,..{0 'i ,:f.)..; /'"'h.\'l 0 E.~

How will your pr~iect complement ~ownto~.n r~dcv~1912~e!!.t efforts '! r:...n r'r.:::T(l!2,~ {V\~1 1 6
\ ,,-.l~'\l.L.P c. ~ (2 t?b M ~L,\\) G.5 U.L, ~l,;._ 1\-\ c:. ~~.).\::::.Fe~'I...I J fL""j- FA01_.~.) \-JJ= L .

?\~O ~\\\" -.)~ \~~t<.\-.I\ • v~!~ AR.~. 6t::ol ~ b j() FtU:S'HSN uP"]'"?"'£' t...~L~!Z
~ (?(2!t; J l O~ AN \jroAT£O C-o(-t b~/...I,j~"">,,,,~ ~t:~ vI 1111'O'..\~\ ''}"f)¥"-\ t\ \,

f\ \r\ !\ \A, n~ ,V\ on,(:, \-4,S'l\) (2,\<:" (- \...:(~(~s.::-_

Signature of applicant:

Signature of property owner: _-Idd./
(if different than applicant)

(~.

Special Notices
1) Properties are eligible only once to receive Storefront Improvement funds.
2) Voters in the Nov. 4, 2008, election in the Clty ofMandan approved an initiated ordinance
that states, I, Installation ofelectric handicap accessible entrance doors are required on every
building open to the public that has received puhlicfunds in any form whatsoever. " Any property
receiving Storefront Improvementfunds since Nov. /4. 2008, is subject to the requirement,
Include an estimatefor an automatic door at leastfor the main entrance ifyou do not have one.



~
cWtVllr

MANDAN

STOREl?RONT IMPROVEMENT
APPLICATION

ATTACHMENT 1:
PHOTOS

(current and historic, ifavailable)







!I:>?Cf
CI''1 Dr

MANDAN

~SlTOREFRONTIMPROVEMENT
APPLICATION

ATTACHMENT 2:
DINGS
PRE & POST





.,





5fTOREFRONT IMPROVEMENT
APPLICATION

l"..~ v "" . tl ..~ -.·

ATTACHMENT 3:
BI S & COST
ESTIMATES



___ J~.800 . 00

306 W Main St - Summary of Proposed Expenditures

==---==----=~~··--· ·--·I -··~~ .~~~-.- ..-.- -. -=--J-" -=
Source of Estimate or Estimated
~i~._.... . ... Purpose . _~~s!- ~_..
_~an n Signs (all. $8,900_) 1?-~~~..~iQ n_~lJ~ __. ...~6 , 000 . 00
Dove Painting Stain brick $1,800.00
.. ._ -_. t ile remova["stamped . .-

Faehnrich Construction concrete ..__ .__$1!~90.09.
-..- ..- .....- ....-.- ..--- .-.. - '" .- .._... New storefront glass ,

auto door operator, back

..._.doors .... _._.._.._ ..._._ ~:?} ,~55 . 0q,

Leingang Home Center .replace 3 back windows i $3,374.00-..--.----- -----.-.-----·------r--·
Sign wiring, light above I
Irear door, recessed

_C~~_~J~~t.!j~ .__.__..._. l l ig_ht~ above f~~_n_t_do.,.,..o_r_
1

._. 2 _1,995:.9.9.
Metal & wood paneling

Tobias Marman on lower 2-foot of
Construction storefront

I $41,424.00- ---1- ··---·_·_--_··--_.._-



Estimate I ContractDove Painting

722 N 4th St
Bismarck, NO 58501
Phone: 701-226-8753
dovepainting@gmail.com

Name/ Address

Dave Albrecht& Eve
Kostelecky
306 W Main St
Mandan, NO 58554

Date

7/312014

Project

Estimate #

1209

r------------- - ---..- --------- - - - - - - - - -y-- - - - - - - - - - --,
Description

Stain of Brickon Store Front (brick only, not mortar)

Bid includes all needed paint ami materials. I Total

Total

1,800.00

$1,800.00

1,02 of'Jotultlue"StodCI""il before work '0 commence. '!illal invoice nmuunt 10 he Ilaid IIpllll ll:ceipt of invoice. 1\ 5~~ '"le feewill be . dded ill invoice il' payment is 1101 receivedaner 30 (lays.
/\ 11 m:.ucrial is g\l:tl'unlccd 10he ;1:\ spccilied, aud thc nhovc work tu he pcdonned in UC,· OI'd'1I1C\: wilh Ihe descr iptiou pfO\'kkd and c;omplct~d in il prufcssioual workmanlike nuumer, Any

udditional rcqucstcd work ;lIlf..IIi,lbc..lD'l1Iat( ri,alcost 1(1 be mutually agreed upon.

Acceptunce or Propos ..1

The above prices, spccific:ltinns and ct'ndh i()n~ are siuisl" CIOI')' and arc hereby.,CCCI)ft."(i. 'r'QUnrc i.luthud1.cd 10do the work as specified, I'nymcnls willbe madeas \111IHnct' above.

("t'Slmnel authorizntiou __•.• . _.._. _ Dale _ _•. __ •.•_.

Thank you tor choosing Dove.



B.A. Faehnrlch Construction
3205 Hillside Rd

Mandan NO 58554
(701) 425-2121

Estimate for :
Dave Albrecht

Estimate
Date I I

7/2/2014 I I

Terms

Item Description

306 E Main St Tile Removal $200 ,00
Mandan NO

Commercial Grade Strength Overlay $800.00
Stamped and Stained

Labor $600.00

ITotal $1,600.00

--< 1 __IPayments/ Credits

IBalance Due $1,600.00



1\11 Agreements A rc ('() Ill i ll~cll( l ;pn ll Delays "I' C m i,:rs and OIl1<;r Delays Uuavuidable or Beyond Our Control

3323 'East Broadwaq .Jt.venue
Bismarck, N'D 58501

701-258 -5600 .... fAX 701-221-2601

'Re.qrMWted- 'By: _ .:Q_c.!1'~.tHdrc@\&: .. __.__ .
300 W~~_Hq-.~r.y._~!a~·_~_ . ._

..M(M~tvJ __ N.P.._~ __8_S_5_f~ _._

for Prope¥ty Locaced: A't:
~__.s.@/WI&'_ ._ _.. ...._...__.......

We> Pro-p01J-el 'to- rUlrvW~11.I &- Ivwtcvli£, 't'ht€/ fo-·Uo-wvVUJ' b-a,t,y-ed. o-rv'P~ Cr ~~("o-r\l~
provtded: by: ._... S.v.t~J!..Y~_ ._!.

MAINJ,:!;yEL:
Approximately 240 Sq. Ft. of Tubelite T14000 Bronze Anodized Aluminum Storefront with 1" Clear. Low-E

IInsulated Glass (Tempered Where Required) and One (1) RECORD 6100 Series Automatic Operator with Two (2)
Wireless Push Pad Actuating Devices For The Net Sum Of: $11,880.00

V..PJ_~B_~E..'lt;_ld
Approximutelv 130 Sq. Ft. of Tubelite T14000 Bronze Anodized Aluminum Storefront with 1" Clear, Low-E .
Insulated Glass For The Net Sum Of: $6 ,975.00 r

~.ACK ENJF~.bICE:
1 N 5'-4" x 6'-8" Custom Tubelite Bronze Anodized Pair of Doors & Frame with Panic Device, 1" Bronze Aluminum :
Insulated Panel and CR441 Door Closer For' The Net Sum Of: $3.200.00 :

ADD ON_QiTLONS:.
1 ~ 3'-0" Bronze Tubelite Door & Frame with Transom & Clear, Low-E Insulated Glass For The Net Sum
Of: : $1.800.00 ~

NOTICES: We Are NOT Responsible For Damage To GJcISS or Aluminum By Other Trades or Damages to any External Surfaces during .
Remodeling-Type Projects. No Construction Protection. No Temporury Enclosures or Heating. No Caulking or Final Washing or Cleaning of Glass :
or Aluminum. unless proposed obove. Breoknqes resulting from conditions beyond our control wiJl be charged as extros. Freight & Sales Tox .
Included unless otherwise noted above. Customer is responsible for aJlLate Fees & Collections Charges in Casesof Default.

CONTRACTIS GUARANTEED FOR ~Q DAYS ONLY. I.e.rm~: Due Upon Completion unless previously negotiated.

BY:ACCEPTED BY: __.._._ _ _ _.__ _ __.__ ..
-r: " /f / #~.....:::...:(,,,-,,'fIIJ_/ _1/ V~ter

'Tom. Wanfj(er, President

ACCEPTANCE DATE:..__. ._.. ..• . .....__._._... Superior Glass) inc.
.... Please signJdCl t eJn'!' fW'11 to cuthcrize materiels to be order-ed



· hereby

WINDOWS
RETAIL SALES CONTRACT

Since 1977

2601 Twin City Drive
Mandan, NO 58554

701-663-7966 • 1-800-732-7120
Fax: 701-667-0865
www.leingang.com

Mandan • Bismarck
Dickinson • Minot • Pierre

(Nameand BusinessAddress of SELLER - Hereinafterreferredto as SELLER)

sells and. __Ev~ !S9stele<::~y or-!dave Albrecht_ _ _ _ __
(Names and Mailing Address of BUYERS· Hereinafterreferred to as BUYER)

purchases from the SELLER the following described GOODSand SERVICES: (All products will have the following specifications unlessotherwise noted.)

Retrofit:

Furnish and install OKNA Composite or vinyl windows, with insulated glass, multi lock system and
screens on venting units. Window(s) will be wrapped with foam insulating tape and sealed into opening with silicone caulk .
Gut-out: U Yes !XI No Existing frame will be removed completely and new window or patio door installed into rough opening.

New Interior Trim: I.J Yes ~ No 0 Unfinished (wi paper) 0 Finished Color: _ _ __
U Ranch a Colonial 0 Oak I,] Other _

New Brickmold: !XI Yes 0 No lJ Composite ~ Wood wrapped with metal Color 'yyindolij Ma~tc""h,-,--_
U Yes ~ No Existing frame will remain in opening, sashes removed and new window set into existing frame.
Cover Existing Brickmold with Metal: 0 Yes ~ No U No Mar U Smooth i...j PVC Color _

Window Color: Outside: TBD Inside: TBD_ _ DH Screen: au 1/2 0 Full Vent Stops: I.J Yes I~ No
Glass options: IiCl Double Pane QgLowE "ZI Argon Gas lJ Triple Pane 0 1-LowE- a 2-LowE- U Arqon Gas

Grids: 0 Yes Xl No '-1 Colonial 0 Craftsman U Perimeter Color Inside: Outside:

Includes: Thruvision Plus Screen . Heatseal Spacer System, Double Healshield Glass System and Insulated Frames. --"~"","-",,,--.__-e._
Follow Lead Safe Practices . - - - - - - - --

Installation Notes:

#1 - Cut off metal window bars. Frame Window approx. 6" smaller on width to allow current exhaust vents to outside.
-~lnisnOUlslOe in winoow maIming COIl. ---- --- . . - ----

#2 - Cut off metal window bars. Normal Install into Existing Frame

#3· Leave Metal Window Bars. Replace rotten brickmold.

White Inside 1 Bron4-.e . Cocoa . o r Alm9nd-.-9ut~I~te_$A.Q54.0_0_

Imond Insid e 1..~lrDo~O.Jd!~ $3 . 3H.,~_

- --- ---------
Any.lnternal Grid S ty le.

Colonial o r T o p Grids. +$154.00

-------

Bid Date 6-12-14
H0!l10 PhOfl t:

Cell Phone 426 ..6170
Work Phone

Down Payment 25% $.

Current Mail : 906 2nd Sf NW

Street 306 West Main
City Mandan State NO Zip 58554

Total $

Email D_ALBRECHT@HC?TMAIL .COM Due on Completion $ ..- --- - - - -
Buyeracknowledges structure being renovated was built in _

Buyeracknowledges receipt of the Notice to Buyer and important information on the back side of this contract.

Buyeracknowledges receipt of two copies of the Notice of Cancellation and further acknowledges that Seller orally informed
Buyer(s)of Buyers RIGHT TO CANCEL the contract.

KEEP A COPY OFTHIS CONTRACTTO PROTECTYOURLEGAL RIGHTS Executed by both Buyer and Seller this _ _. . day of 20 .

1%% per month late payment fee will be charged Each buyer hereby acknowledges receipt of a fully
10 all PAST DUE ACCOUNTS. completed copy of this RETAIL SALES CONTRACT.

ACCEPTED BY SELLER '.fl U' IFRI

Brandon Lei.l1gang
!AUTHO'1IZED flEP'lESEmATIIJEI IIJUYI.'lll

U Yes 0 No Permission to install Job Sign on property .



reo c~•...-o:~".~·-.-· _· .-o: ...· t ......- .... :-· _-......... ~~-"~ ,".. ' ~ .,

I
I
I

I,
,

CSN Electric

1421 5 12th St

Bismarck NO 58504

7014264524

Fax [000.000 .0000]

[e-mail)

:=:.~~"::--- -e--••- .__.-

Date : 7/3/2014
Invoice -1/ [100]

Expiration Date: 9/3/2014

[Name)

BREA Boutique

306 W Main St.

Mandan ND 58554

(Phone)

Customer ID [ABC12345]

'1
I
I
'j
:1

:1
i
i

-I
i

'!

Due on receipt

$1950.00

$45 .00

$1995.00

$750.00

$1200.00

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax

1'otal Discount

labor

1

1

1

1

~-' "' ' g ., ~~~:~V·~:·-;;~7.i%':\m~i;;,,,~,,,s: .tI.~;m1iW>1?'~"'o:-."::;~. · A~l\}.W'~<~Ml ~~~~<' . ' I~' ~
• - , , '} W)j~:?~'9i ~~~~@f%~~~;'~";!!':X~~:J'9.<t~ ': · ;t1~~ _,~~#~1 < ~ - - , J _ . , , . _ ' " , : l t~.

~:-.;~~~~ N<i. ' \..';-)~Jo. mri-~""~' ,:;I'~~}.~~. ...... r ""'~~ ..~. , ~I .<'S;: "~ • _ ••• t~~

Install sign wiring

Install dusk to dawn
ligh t above rear door
In stall three recessed
lights above front
door

f"'aterial for above

\:

i
1·';I;
I:

f
L,.
i'
I:
1-
\.
Ii

l~

I

YOUR LOGO
HERE

[Your company sloqon]



306 W. MAIN- EXTERIOR FACADE IMPROVEMENTS
Tobias Marman Construction

July 2, 2014
306 W. Main, Mandan

215 Airport Road
701-527 -1847



306 W. MAIN- EXTERIOR FAc;ADE IlVIPROVEMENTS

July 2,2014

Between the Owner: J)~lVC Albrecht-Owner
306 W. Main, Mandan

And the Contractor: Tobias Marman Constructlon L.L.c.
215 Airport Road, Suite 301
Contractor License Number #30256
701-527-1847

For the Project: 30(; W. Main, Mandan

SCOPE OF WORK:

Worktoconsist of: Removing middemoing theexisting bluetilefacade on lower 2 foot areaofexterior store
hunt walls, and replaci ng itwith approxirnately 65squme teetof metal or wood paneling. Front awning work
toconsist ofremoving it and wrapping with similar metal orwood paneling.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

Theremay beunseen issues thatwere notclearly visible atthe initial sitevisit. Unseen conditions will affect
thepriceof this project. Testing and removal 01'anyasbestos bearing material, ifany,is notfigured into the
abovescope, Ifany, thiswork will beprovided byothers. Potential cost') from this type of worktobepaidfor
by Owner.

TOTAL BASE PRICE:

UASE PRICE INCLUDI~S:

Ll, All permits, design work. project administration andcoordination.

1.2. Demolition, trash removal, andmetal work.

$ 2,800.00



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To hire AE2S engineering firm to provide 

engineering services for 2014 water system improvements. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The engineering department in cooperation with 

the public works department have identified a couple water system improvement projects 

that were amended to the capital improvements plan last year. The projects would be to;  

 

1) Relocate a pressure reducing valve from north of I-94 to south of I-94 in order 

to improve pressures in this area.  

 

 2)  Inspect Collins reservoir in anticipation of a reservoir improvement project. In  

      order to do so it is necessary to install pipe and valves to drain Collins                    

      reservoir without disrupting any of the system downstream of it.  

 

The Engineering department requests to hire AE2S in order to accomplish these projects.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The Agreement for professional services is based on standard hourly 

rates and not to exceed $73,000, the entire project is preliminarily estimated to cost near 

$300,000. We have consulted with the Finance department and it has been agreed that 

this project is able to be funded by the water and sewer utility base rates.   

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Ongoing project coordination with AE2S will be necessary.  

 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2014 

PREPARATION DATE: July 11, 2014 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider entering into an Engineering 

Service Agreement with AE2S for Water 

System Improvements  

  

 

  

New Business No. 3 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject: Consider entering into an Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S for 

Water System Improvements 

Page 2 of 2 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

review  

 

RECOMMENDATION: Enter into the agreement with AE2S. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   I move to approve the Engineering Services Agreement with 

AE2S for the Mandan 2014 Water System Improvements. 

 
 

 



AGREEMENT
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER

FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

THIS IS AN AGREEMENT effective as of July 15, 2014("Effective Date") between City of Mandan, 205 2nd

Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554-3125 ("OWNER") and Advanced Engineering and Environmental Services, Inc., 1815

Schafer Street, Suite 301, Bismarck, ND 58501 ("ENGINEER").

OWNER intends to construct the following improvements: Mandan 2014 Water System Improvements

("Project") for the City of Mandan, as further described in Exhibit E. OWNER and ENGINEER in consideration of their

mutual covenants as set forth herein agree as follows:

Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services

Page 1 of 12



ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES OF ENGINEER 3.02 Suspension

ARTICLE 2 - OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

B. Upon this Agreement becoming effective,
ENGINEER is authorized to begin Basic Services as set
forth in Exhibit A.

C. If authorized by OWNER, ENGINEER shall
furnish Resident Project Representative(s) with duties,
responsibilities and limitations of authority as set forth in
Exhibit D.

1.01 Scope

A. ENGINEER shall provide the Basic
Additional Servicesset forth herein and in Exhibit A.

and

A. If OWNER fails to give prompt authorization to
proceed with any phase of services after completion of the
immediately preceding phase, or if ENGINEER's services
are delayed through no fault of ENGINEER, ENGINEER
may, after giving seven days written notice to OWNER,
suspend services under this Agreement.

B. If ENGINEER's services are delayed or
suspended in whole or in part by OWNER, or if
ENGINEER's services are extended by Contractor's
actions or inactions for more than 30 days through no fault
of ENGINEER, ENGINEER shall be entitled to equitable
adjustment of rates and amounts of compensation provided
for elsewhere in this Agreement to reflect, reasonable costs
incurred by ENGINEER in connection with, among other
things, such delay or suspension and reactivation and the
fact that the time for performance under this Agreement has
been revised.

2.01 General

A. OWNER shall have the responsibilities set forth
herein and in Exhibit B.

ARTICLE 3 - TIMES FOR RENDERING SERVICES

ARTICLE 4 - PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER

4.01 Methods of Payment for Services and
Reimbursable Expenses of ENGINEER

3.01 General

A. For Basic Services. OWNER shall pay
ENGINEER for Basic Services performed or furnished
under Exhibit A, Part 1, as set forth in Exhibit C.

A. ENGINEER's services and compensation under
this Agreement have been agreed to in anticipation of the
orderly and continuous progress of the Project through
completion. Unless specific periods of time or specific
dates for providing services are specified in this
Agreement, ENGINEER's obligation to render services
hereunder will be for a period which may reasonably be
required for the completion of said services.

B. If in this Agreement specific periods of time for
rendering services are set forth or specific dates by which
services are to be completed are provided, and if such
periods of time or dates are changed through no fault of
ENGINEER, the rates and amounts of compensation
provided for herein shall be subject to equitable adjustment.
If OWNER has requested changes in the scope, extent, or
character of the Project, the time of performance of
ENGINEER's services shall be adjusted equitably.

C. For purposes of this Agreement the term "day"
means a calendar day of24 hours.

B. For Additional Services. OWNER shall pay
ENGINEER for Additional Services performed or
furnished under Exhibit A, Part 2, as set forth in Exhibit C.

C. For Reimbursable Expenses. In addition to
payments provided for in paragraphs 4.01.A, Construction
and Post-Construction, and 4.01.B, OWNER shall pay
ENGINEER for Reimbursable Expenses incurred by
ENGINEER and ENGINEER's Consultants as set forth in
Exhibit C.

4.02 Other Provisions Concerning Payments

A. Preparation of Invoices. Invoices will be
prepared in accordance with ENGINEER's standard
invoicing practices and will be submitted to OWNER by
ENGINEER, unless otherwise agreed. The amount billed
in each invoice will be calculated as set forth in Exhibit C.

B. Payment of Invoices. Invoices are due and
payable within 30 days of receipt. If OWNER fails to
make any payment due ENGINEER for services and
expenses within 30 days after receipt of ENGINEER's
invoice therefor, the amounts due ENGINEER will be
increased at the rate of 1.0% per month (or the maximum

Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services

Page 2 of 12



rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth
day. In addition, ENGINEER may, after giving seven days
written notice to OWNER, suspend services under this
Agreement until ENGINEER has been paid in full all
amounts due for services, expenses, and other related
charges. Payments will be credited first to interest and then
to principal.

C. Disputed Invoices. In the event of a disputed or
contested invoice, only that portion so contested may be
withheld from payment, and the undisputed portion will be
paid.

D. Payments Upon Termination.

1. In the event of any termination under
paragraph 6.06, ENGINEER will be entitled to
invoice OWNER and will be paid in accordance with
Exhibit C for all services performed or furnished and
all Reimbursable Expenses incurred through the
effective date of termination.

2. In the event of termination by OWNER for
convenience or by ENGINEER for cause,
ENGINEER, in addition to invoicing for those items
identified in subparagraph 4.02.D.l, shall be entitled to
invoice OWNER and shall be paid a reasonable
amount for services and expenses directly attributable
to termination, both before and after the effective date
of termination, such as reassignment of personnel,
costs of terminating contracts with ENGINEER's
Consultants, and other related close-out costs, using
methods and rates for Additional Services as set forth
in Exhibit C.

E. Records of ENGINEER's Costs. Records of
ENGINEER's costs pertinent to ENGINEER's
compensation under this Agreement shall be kept in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.
To the extent necessary to verify ENGINEER's charges
and upon OWNER's timely request, copies of such records
will be made available to OWNER at cost.

F. Legislative Actions. In the event of legislative
actions after the Effective Date of the Agreement by any
level of govenunent that impose taxes, fees, or costs on
ENGINEER's services or other costs in connection with
this Project or compensation therefor, such new taxes, fees,
or costs shall be invoiced to and paid by OWNER as a
Reimbursable Expense to which a Factor of 1.0 shall be
applied. Should such taxes, fees, or costs be imposed, they
shall be in addition to ENGINEER's estimated total
compensation.

G. Adjustment ofENGINEER's Compensation: If it
becomes apparent to ENGINEER that the amount
estimated in paragraph C4.01.A in Exhibit C will be

exceeded, ENGINEER shall give OWNER written notice
thereof. Promptly thereafter, OWNER and ENGINEER
shall review the matter of services remaining to be
performed and compensation for such services.

ARTICLE 5 - OPINIONS OF COST

5.01 Opinions of Probable Construction Cost

A. ENGINEER's opinions of probable Construction
Cost provided for herein are to be made on the basis of
ENGINEER's experience and qualifications and represent
ENGINEER's best judgment as an experienced and
qualified professional generally familiar with the industry.
However, since ENGINEER has no control over the cost of
labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others,
or over the Contractor's methods of determining prices, or
over competitive bidding or market conditions,
ENGINEER cannot and does not guarantee that proposals,
bids, or actual Construction Cost will not vary from
opinions of probable Construction Cost prepared by
ENGINEER. If OWNER wishes greater assurance as to
probable Construction Cost, OWNER shall employ an
independent cost estimator as provided in Exhibit B.

5.02 Designing to Construction Cost Limit

A. Not Used.

5.03 Opinions of Total Project Costs

A. ENGINEER assumes no responsibility for the
accuracy of opinions ofTotal Project Costs.

ARTICLE 6 - GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

6.01 Standards of Performance

A. The standard of care for all professional
engineering and related services performed or furnished by
ENGINEER under this Agreement will be the care and
skill ordinarily used by members of ENGINEER's
profession practicing under similar circumstances at the
same time and in the same locality. ENGINEER makes no
warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement or
otherwise, in connection with ENGINEER's services.

B. ENGINEER shall be responsible for the technical
accuracy of its services and documents resulting therefrom,
and OWNER shall not be responsible for discovering
deficiencies therein.

Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services

Page 3 of 12



C. ENGINEER shall perform or furnish professional
engineering and related services in all phases of the Project
to which this Agreement applies. ENGINEER shall serve
as OWNER's prime professional for the Project.
ENGINEER may employ such ENGINEER's Consultants
as ENGINEER deems necessary to assist in the
performance or furnishing of the services. ENGINEER
shall not be required to employ any ENGINEER's
Consultant unacceptable to ENGINEER.

D. ENGINEER and OWNER shall comply with
applicable Laws or Regulations and OWNER-mandated
standards. This Agreement is based on these requirements
as of its Effective Date. Changes to these requirements
after the Effective Date of this Agreement may be the basis
for modifications to OWNER's responsibilities or to
ENGINEER's scope of services, times of performance, or
compensation.

E. OWNER shall be responsible for, and
ENGINEER may rely upon, the accuracy and completeness
of all requirements, programs, instructions, reports, data,
and other information furnished by OWNER to
ENGINEER pursuant to this Agreement. ENGINEER may
use such requirements, reports, data, and information in
performing or furnishing services under this Agreement.

F. OWNER shall make decisions and carry out its
other responsibilities in a timely manner and shall bear all
costs incident thereto so as not to delay the services of
ENGINEER.

G. Prior to the commencement of the Construction
Phase, OWNER shall notify ENIGNEER of any notice or
certification that ENGINEER will be requested to provide
to OWNER or third parties in connection with the Project.
OWNER and ENGINEER shall reach agreement on the
terms of any such requested notice or certification, and
OWNER shall authorize such Additional Services as are
necessary to enable ENGINEER to provide the notices or
certifications requested.

H. ENGINEER shall not be required to sign any
documents, no matter by whom requested, that would result
in the ENGINEER's having to certify, guarantee or warrant
the existence of conditions whose existence the
ENGINEER cannot ascertain. OWNER agrees not to make
resolution of any dispute with the ENGINEER or payment
of any amount due to the ENGINEER in any way
contingent upon the ENGINEER's signing any such
certification.

1. During the Construction Phase, ENGINEER shall
not supervise, direct, or have control over Contractor's
work, nor shall ENGINEER have authority over or
responsibility for the means, methods, techniques,
sequences, or procedures of construction selected by

Contractor, for safety precautions and programs incident to
the Contractor's work in progress, nor for any failure of
Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations
applicable to Contractor's furnishing and performing the
Work.

1. ENGINEER neither guarantees the performance
of any Contractor nor assumes responsibility for any
Contractor's failure to furnish and perform the Work in
accordance with the Contract Documents.

K. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts or
omissions of any Contractor(s), subcontractor or supplier,
or of any of the Contractor's agents or employees or any
other persons (except ENGINEER's own employees) at the
Site or otherwise furnishing or performing any of the
Contractor's work; or for any decision made on
interpretations or clarifications of the Contract Documents
given by OWNER without consultation and advice of
ENGINEER.

L. The General Conditions for any construction
contract documents prepared hereunder are to be the
"Standard General Conditions of the Construction
Contract" as prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract
Documents Committee (Document No. C-700, 2002
Edition).

6.02 Authorized Project Representatives

A. Contemporaneous with the execution of this
Agreement, ENGINEER and OWNER shall designate
specific individuals to act as ENGINEER's and OWNER's
representatives with respect to the services to be performed
or fumished by ENGINEER and responsibilities of
OWNER under this Agreement. Such individuals shall
have authority to transmit instructions, receive information,
and render decisions relative to the Project on behalf of
each respective party.

6.03 Design without Construction Phase Services

A. Should OWNER provide Construction Phase
services with either OWNER's representatives or a third
party, ENGINEER's Basic Services under this Agreement
will be considered to be completed upon completion of the
Final Design or Bidding and Negotiating Phase as outlined
in Exhibit A.

B. It is understood and agreed that if ENGINEER's
Basic Services under this Agreement do not include Project
observation, or review of the Contractor's performance, or
any other Construction Phase services, and that such
services will be provided by OWNER, then OWNER
assumes all responsibility for interpretation of the Contract
Documents and for construction observation or review and

Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services

Page 4 of 12



waives any claims against the ENGINEER that may be in
any way connected thereto.

6.04 Use of Documents

A. All Documents are instruments of service in
respect to this Project, and ENGINEER shall retain an
ownership and property interest therein (including the right
of reuse at the discretion of the ENGINEER) whether or
not the Project is completed.

B. Copies of OWNER-furnished data that may be
relied upon by ENGINEER are limited to the printed copies
(also known as hard copies) that are delivered to the
ENGINEER pursuant to Exhibit B. Files in electronic
media format of text, data, graphics, or of other types that
are furnished by OWNER to ENGINEER are only for
convenience of ENGINEER. Any conclusion or
information obtained or derived from such electronic files
will be at the user's sole risk.

C. Copies of Documents that may be relied upon by
OWNER are limited to the printed copies (also known as
hard copies) that are signed or sealed by the ENGINEER.
Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or
of other types that are furnished by ENGINEER to
OWNER are only for convenience of OWNER. Any
conclusion or information obtained or derived from such
electronic files will be at the user's sole risk.

D. Because data stored in electronic media format can
deteriorate or be modified inadvertently or otherwise
without authorization of the data's creator, the party
receiving electronic files agrees that it will perform
acceptance tests or procedures within 60 days, after which
the receiving party shall be deemed to have accepted the
data thus transferred, Any enol'S detected within the 60
day acceptance period will be corrected by the party
delivering the electronic files. ENGINEER shall not be
responsible to maintain documents stored in electronic
media format after acceptance by OWNER.

E. When transferring documents in electronic media
format, ENGINEER makes no representations as to long
term compatibility, usability, or readability of documents
resulting from the use of software application packages,
operating systems, or computer hardware differing from
those used by ENGINEER at the beginning of this Project.

F. OWNER may make and retain copies of
Documents for information and reference in connection
with use on the Project by OWNER. Such Documents are
not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by
OWNER or others on extensions of the Project or on any
other project. Any such reuse or modification without
written verification or adaptation by ENGINEER, as
appropriate for the specific purpose intended, will be at

OWNER's sole risk and without liability or legal exposure
to ENGINEER or to ENGINEER's Consultants. OWNER
shall indemnify and hold harmless ENGINEER and
ENGINEER's Consultants from all claims, damages,
losses, and expenses, including attorneys' fees arising out
of or resulting therefrom.

G. If there is a discrepancy between the electronic
files and the hard copies, the hard copies govern,

H. Any verification or adaptation of the Documents
for extensions of the Project or for any other project will
entitle ENGINEER to further compensation at rates to be
agreed upon by OWNER and ENGINEER.

6.05 Insurance

A. ENGINEER shall maintain insurance coverage for
Workers' Compensation, General Liability, and
Automobile Liability and will provide certificates of
insurance to OWNER upon request.

B. Not Used.

C. OWNER shall require Contractor to purchase and
maintain general liability and other insurance as specified
in the Contract Documents and to cause ENGINEER and
ENGINEER's Consultants to be listed as additional
insureds with respect to such liability and other insurance
purchased and maintained by Contractor for the Project

D. Not Used.

E. All policies of property insurance shall contain
provisions to the effect that ENGINEER's and
ENGINEER's Consultants' interests are covered and that in
the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurers
will have no rights of recovery against any of the insureds
or additional insureds thereunder.

F. At any time, OWNER may request that
ENGINEER, at OWNER's sole expense, provide
additional insurance coverage, increased limits, or revised
deductibles that are more protective than those specified in
Exhibit G. If so requested by OWNER, with the
concurrence ofENGINEER, and if commercially available,
ENGINEER shall obtain and shall require ENGINEER's
Consultants to obtain such additional insurance coverage,
different limits, or revised deductibles for such periods of
time as requested by OWNER.

6.06 Termination

A. The obligation to provide further services under
this Agreement may be terminated:

1. For cause,

Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services

Page 5 of 12



a. By either party upon 30 days written
notice in the event of substantial failure by the
other party to perform in accordance with the
terms hereof through no fault of the terminating
party.

b. By ENGINEER:

1) upon seven days written notice if
ENGINEER believes that ENGINEER is
being requested by OWNER to finnish or
perform services contrary to ENGINEER's
responsibilities as a licensed professional; or

2) upon seven days written notice ifthe
ENGINEER's services for the Project are
delayed or suspended for more than 90 days
for reasons beyond ENGINEER's control.

3) ENGINEER shall have no liability
to OWNER on account of such termination.

c. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this
Agreement will not terminate as a result of such
substantial failure if the party receiving such
notice begins, within seven days of receipt of such
notice, to correct its failure to perform and
proceeds diligently to cure such failure within no
more than 30 days of receipt thereof; provided,
however, that if and to the extent such substantial
failure cannot be reasonably cured within such 30
day period, and if such party has diligently
attempted to cure the same and thereafter
continues diligently to cure the same, then the
cure period provided for herein shall extend up to,
but in no case more than, 60 days after the date of
receipt of the notice.

2. For convenience,

6.08 Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries

A. OWNER and ENGINEER each is hereby bound
and the partners, successors, executors, administrators and
legal representatives of OWNER and ENGINEER (and to
the extent permitted by paragraph 6.08.B the assigns of
OWNER and ENGINEER) are hereby bound to the other
party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors,
executors, administrators and legal representatives (and
said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all
covenants, agreements and obligations ofthis Agreement.

B. Neither OWNER nor ENGINEER may assign,
sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest (including,
but without limitation, moneys that are due or may become
due) in this Agreement without the written consent of the
other, except to the extent that any assignment, subletting,
or transfer is mandated or restricted by law. Unless
specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to
an assignment, no assigmnent will release or discharge the
assignor from any duty or responsibility under this
Agreement.

C. Unless expressly provided otherwise III this
Agreement:

1. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed
to create, impose, or give rise to any duty owed by
OWNER or ENGINEER to any Contractor,
Contractor's subcontractor, supplier, other individual
or entity, or to any surety for or employee of any of
them.

2. All duties and responsibilities undertaken
pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and
exclusive benefit of OWNER and ENGINEER and not
for the benefit of any other party. The OWNER agrees
that the substance of the provisions of this paragraph
6.08.C shall appear in the Contract Documents.

a. By OWNER effective upon the receipt
ofnotice by ENGINEER.

6.09 Dispute Resolution

Not Used.
B. The terminating party under paragraphs 6.06.A.1

or 6.06.A.2 may set the effective date of termination at a
time up to 30 days later than otherwise provided to allow
ENGINEER to demobilize personnel and equipment from
the Site, to complete tasks whose value would otherwise be
lost, to prepare notes as to the status of completed and
uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Project materials in
orderly files.

6.07 Controlling Law

A. This Agreement is to be governed by the law of
the State ofNorth Dakota.

6.10 Hazardous Environmental Condition

A. OWNER represents to Engineer that to the best of
its knowledge a Hazardous Environmental Condition does
not exist.

B. OWNER has disclosed to the best of its
knowledge to ENGINEER the existence of all Asbestos,
PCB's, Petroleum, Hazardous Waste, or Radioactive
Material located at or near the Site, including type, quantity
and location.

Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services

Page 6 of 12



C. If a Hazardous Environmental Condition is
encountered or alleged, ENGINEER shall have the
obligation to notify OWNER and, to the extent of
applicable Laws and Regulations, appropriate
governmental officials.

D. It is acknowledged by both parties that
ENGINEER's scope of services does not include any
services related to a Hazardous Environmental Condition.
In the event ENGINEER or any other party encounters a
Hazardous Environmental Condition, ENGINEER may, at
its option and without liability for consequential or any
other damages, suspend performance of services on the
portion of the Project affected thereby until OWNER: (i)
retains appropriate specialist consultant(s) or contractor(s)
to identify and, as appropriate, abate, remediate, or remove
the Hazardous Environmental Condition; and (ii) warrants
that the Site is in full compliance with applicable Laws and
Regulations.

E. OWNER acknowledges that ENGINEER is
performing professional services for OWNER and that
ENGINEER is not and shall not be required to become an
"arranger," "operator," "generator," or "transporter" of
hazardous substances, as defined in the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act
of 1990 (CERCLA), which are or may be encountered at or
near the Site in connection with ENGINEER's activities
under this Agreement.

F. If ENGINEER's services under this Agreement
cannot be performed because of a Hazardous
Environmental Condition, the existence of the condition
shall justify ENGINEER's terminating this Agreement for
cause on 30 days notice.

6.11 Allocation of Risks

A. Indenmification

1. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless
OWNER, OWNER's officers, directors, partners, and
employees from and against any and all costs, losses,
and damages (including but not limited to all fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other
professionals, and all court or arbitration or other
dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent
acts or omissions of ENGINEER or ENGINEER's
officers, directors, partners, employees, and
ENGINEER's Consultants in the performance and
furnishing of ENGINEER's services under this
Agreement.

2. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
OWNER shall indemnify and hold harmless
ENGINEER, ENGINEER's officers, directors,

partners, employees, and ENGINEER's Consultants
from and against any and all costs, losses, and
damages (including but not limited to all fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other
professionals, and all court or arbitration or other
dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent
acts or omissions of OWNER or OWNER's officers,
directors, partners, employees, and. OWNER's
consultants with respect to this Agreement or the
Project.

3. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
ENGINEER's total liability to OWNER and anyone
claiming by, through, or under OWNER for any cost,
loss, or damages caused in part by the negligence of
ENGINEER and in part by the negligence of OWNER
or any other negligent entity or individual, shall not
exceed the percentage share that ENGINEER's
negligence bears to the total negligence of OWNER,
ENGINEER, and all other negligent entities and
individuals.

4. In addition to the indenmity provided under
paragraph 6.II.A.2 of this Agreement, and to the
fullest extent permitted by law, OWNER shall
indemnify and hold harmless ENGINEER and its
officers, directors, partners, employees, and
ENGINEER's Consultants from and against all costs,
losses, and damages (including but not limited to all
fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys,
and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or
other dispute resolution costs) caused by, arising out of
or resulting from a Hazardous Environmental
Condition, provided that (i) any such cost, loss, or
damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness,
disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of
tangible property (other than completed Work),
including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and (ii)
nothing in this paragraph 6.11.A.4. shall obligate
OWNER to indemnify any individual or entity from
and against the consequences of that individual's or
entity's own negligence or willful misconduct.

5. To the fullest extent permitted by law, but only
to the extent that Engineer and Owner have agreed to a
correspondingmutual waiver, Consultant and Engineer
waive against each other, and the other's officers,
members, directors, partners, agents, insurers,
consultants, and employees, any and all claims for or
entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, or
consequential damages arising out of, resulting from,
or in any way related to this Agreement or the Project.

6. The indemnification provision of Article
6.ll.A.I is subject to and limited by the provisions

Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services

Page 7 of 12



agreed to by OWNER and ENGINEER in Article
6.12.

6.16 Waiver

6.13 Notices

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the total
liability, in the aggregate, of ENGINEER and
ENGINEER's officers, directors, partners, employees,
agents, and ENGINEER's Consultants, and any of them,
to OWNER and anyone claiming by, through, or under
OWNER for any and all claims, losses, costs, or damages
whatsoever arising out of, resulting from or in any way
related to the Project or the Agreement from any cause or
causes, including but not limited to the negligence,
professional errors or omissions, strict liability or breach
of contract, or warranty express or implied, of
ENGINEER or ENGINEER's officers, directors, partners,
employees, agents, or ENGINEER's Consultants, or any
of them (hereafter "OWNER's Claims"), shall not exceed
the total insurance proceeds paid on behalf of or to
ENGINEER by ENGINEER's insurers in settlement or
satisfaction of OWNER's Claims under the terms and
conditions of ENGINEER's insurance policies applicable
thereto (excluding fees, costs and expenses of
investigation, claims adjustment, defense, and appeal).

6.12 Limits of Liability

A. Non-enforcement of any provision by either party
shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it
affect the enforceability of that provision or of the
remainder ofthis Agreement.

6.17 Headings

A. The headings used in this Agreement are for
general reference only and do not have special significance.

ARTICLE 7 - DEFINITIONS

7.01 Defined Terms

A. Wherever used in this Agreement (including the
Exhibits hereto) and printed with initial or all capital
letters, the terms listed below have the meanings
indicated, which are applicable to both the singular and
plural thereof:

1. Addenda--Written or graphic instruments
issued prior to the opening of Bids which clarify,
correct, or change the Bidding Documents.

A. Any notice required under this Agreement will be
in writing, addressed to the appropriate party at its address
on the signature page and given personally, or by registered
or certified mail postage prepaid, or by a commercial
courier service. All notices shall be effective upon the date
of receipt.

6.14 Survival

A. All express representations, indemnifications, or
limitations of liability included in this Agreement will
survive its completion or termination for any reason.

6.15 Severability

A. Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be
void or unenforceable under any Laws or Regulations shall
be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall
continue to be valid and binding upon OWNER and
ENGINEER, who agree that the Agreement shall be
reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof
with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close
as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken
provision.

2. Additional Services-»The services to be
performed for or furnished to OWNER by
ENGINEER in accordance with Exhibit A, Part 2 of
this Agreement.

3. Agreement--This "Standard Form of
Agreement between OWNER and ENGINEER for
Professional Services," including those Exhibits listed
in Article 8 hereof.

4. Application for Payment--The form
acceptable to ENGINEER which is to be used by
Contractor in requesting progress or [mal payments for
the completion of its Work and which is to be
accompanied by such supporting documentation as is
required by the Contract Documents.

5. Asbestos--Any material that contains more
than one percent asbestos and is friable or is releasing
asbestos fibers into the air above current action levels
established by the United States Occupational Safety
and Health Administration.

6. Basic Services-» The services to be performed
for or furnished to OWNER by ENGINEER in
accordance with Exhibit A, Part 1, ofthis Agreement.

Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services

Page 8 of 12



7. Bid--The offer or proposal of the bidder
submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the
prices for the Work to be performed.

8. Bidding Documents--The advertisement or
invitation to Bid, instructions to bidders, the Bid form
and attachments, the Bid bond, if any, the proposed
Contract Documents, and all Addenda, if any.

9. Change Order--A document recommended
by ENGINEER, which is signed by Contractor and
OWNER to authorize an addition, deletion or revision
in the Work, or an adjustment in the Contract Price or
the Contract Times, issued on or after the Effective
Date ofthe Construction Agreement.

10. Construction Agreement-»The written
instrument which is evidence of the agreement,
contained in the Contract Documents, between
OWNER and Contractor covering the Work.

11. Construction Contract--The entire and
integrated written agreement between the OWNER
and Contractor concerning the Work.

12. Construction Cost--The cost to OWNER of
those portions of the entire Project designed or
specified by ENGINEER. Construction Cost does not
include costs of services of ENGINEER or other
design professionals and consultants, cost of land,
rights-of-way, or compensation for damages to
properties, or OWNER's costs for legal, accounting,
insurance counseling or auditing services, or interest
and financing charges incurred in connection with the
Project, or the cost of other services to be provided by
others to OWNER pursuant to Exhibit B of this
Agreement. Construction Cost is one of the items
comprising Total Project Costs.

13. Contract Documents--Documents that
establish the rights and obligations of the parties
engaged in construction and include the Construction
Agreement between OWNER and Contractor,
Addenda (which pertain to the Contract Documents),
Contractor's Bid (including documentation
accompanying the Bid and any post-Bid
documentation submitted prior to the notice of award)
when attached as an exhibit to the Construction
Agreement, the notice to proceed, the bonds,
appropriate certifications, the General Conditions, the
Supplementary Conditions, the Specifications and the
Drawings as the same are more specifically identified
in the Construction Agreement, together with all
Written Amendments, Change Orders, Work Change
Directives, Field Orders, and ENGINEER's written
interpretations and clarifications issued on or after the
Effective Date of the Construction Agreement.

Approved Shop Drawings and the reports and
drawings of subsurface and physical conditions are not
Contract Documents.

14. Contract Price--The moneys payable by
OWNER to Contractor for completion of the Work in
accordance with the Contract Documents and as stated
in the Construction Agreement.

15. Contract Times--The numbers of days or the
dates stated in the Construction Agreement to:
(i) achieve Substantial Completion, and (ii) complete
the Work so that it is ready for [mal payment as
evidenced by ENGINEER's written recommendation
of final payment.

16. Contractor--An individual or entity with
whom OWNER enters into a Construction Agreement.

17. Correction Period--The time after Substantial
Completion during which Contractor must correct, at
no cost to OWNER, any Defective Work, normally
one year after the date of Substantial Completion or
such longer period of time as may be prescribed by
Laws or Regulations or by the terms of any applicable
special guarantee or specific provision of the Contract
Documents.

18. Defective--An adjective which, when
modifying the word Work, refers to Work that is
unsatisfactory, faulty, or deficient, in that it does not
conform to the Contract Documents, or does not meet
the requirements of any inspection, reference standard,
test, or approval referred to in the Contract Documents,
or has been damaged prior to ENGINEER's
recommendation of final payment.

19. Documents--Data, reports, Drawings,
Specifications, Record Drawings, and other
deliverables, whether in printed or electronic media
format, provided or furnished in appropriate phases by
ENGINEER to OWNER pursuant to this Agreement.

20. Drawings-»That part of the Contract
Documents prepared or approved by ENGINEER
which graphically shows the scope, extent, and
character of the Work to be performed by Contractor.
Shop Drawings are not Drawings as so defined.

21. Effective Date of the Construction
Agreement-sThe date indicated in the Construction
Agreement on which it becomes effective, but if no
such date is indicated, it means the date on which the
Construction Agreement is signed and delivered by the
last ofthe two parties to sign and deliver.

Standard Form ofAgreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services

Page 9 of 12



22. Effective Date of the Agreement-«The date
indicated in this Agreement on which it becomes
effective, but if no such date is indicated, it means the
date on which the Agreement is signed and delivered
by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver.

23. ENGINEER's Consultants--Individuals or
entities having a contract with ENGINEER to furnish
services with respect to this Project as ENGINEER's
independent professional associates, consultants,
subcontractors, or vendors. The term ENGINEER
includes ENGINEER's Consultants.

24. Field Order--A written order issued by
ENGINEER which directs minor changes in the Work
but which does not involve a change in the Contract
Price or the Contract Times.

25. General Conditions-That part of the Contract
Documents which sets forth terms, conditions, and
procedures that govern the Work to be performed or
furnished by Contractor with respect to the Project.

26. Hazardous Environmental Condition--The
presence at the Site of Asbestos, PCB's, Petroleum,
Hazardous Waste, or Radioactive Materials in such
quantities or circumstances that may present a
substantial danger to persons or property exposed
thereto in connection with the Work.

27. Hazardous Waste--The term Hazardous
Waste shall have the meaning provided in Section
1004 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 USC
Section 6903) as amended from time to time.

28. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations-
Any and all applicable laws, rules, regulations,
ordinances, codes, standards, and orders of any and all
governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and courts
having jurisdiction.

29. PCB's--Polychlorinated biphenyls.
30. Petroleum--Petroleum, including crude oil or

any fraction thereof which is liquid at standard
conditions of temperature and pressure (60 degrees
Fahrenheit and 14.7 pounds per square inch absolute),
such as oil, petroleum, fuel oil, oil sludge, oil refuse,
gasoline, kerosene, and oil mixed with other non
Hazardous Waste and crude oils.

31. Radioactive Materials--Source, special
nuclear, or byproduct material as defined by the
Atomic Energy Act of 1954 (42 USC Section 2011 et
seq.) as amended from time to time.

32. Record Drawings-«The Drawings as issued
for construction on which the ENGINEER, upon

completion of the Work, has shown changes due to
Addenda or Change Orders and other information
which ENGINEER considers significant based on
record documents furnished by Contractor to
ENGINEER and which were annotated by Contractor
to show changes made during construction.

33. Reimbursable Expenses--The expenses
incurred directly by ENGINEER in connection with
the performing or furnishing of Basic and Additional
Services for the Project for which OWNER shall pay
ENGINEER as indicated in Exhibit C.

34. Resident Project Representative-»The
authorized representative of ENGINEER, if any,
assigned to assist ENGINEER at the Site during the
Construction Phase. The Resident Project
Representative will be ENGINEER's agent or
employee and under ENGINEER's supervision. As
used herein, the term Resident Project Representative
includes any assistants of Resident Project
Representative agreed to by OWNER. The duties and
responsibilities of the Resident Project Representative
are as set forth in Exhibit D.

35. Samples--Physical examples of materials,
equipment, or workmanship that are representative of
some portion of the Work and which establish the
standards by which such portion of the Work will be
judged.

36. Shop Drawings--All drawings, diagrams,
illustrations, schedules, and other data or information
which are specifically prepared or assembled by or for
Contractor and submitted by Contractor to
ENGINEER to illustrate some portion ofthe Work.

37. Site--Lands or areas indicated in the Contract
Documents as being furnished by OWNER upon
which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and
easements for access thereto, and such other lands
furnished by OWNER which are designated for use of
Contractor.

38. Specifications-:That pali of the Contract
Documents consisting of written teclmical descriptions
of materials, equipment, systems, standards, and
workmanship as applied to the Work and certain
administrative details applicable thereto.

39. Substantial Completion--The time at which
the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to
the point where, in the opinion of ENGINEER, the
Work (or a specified part thereof) is sufficiently
complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents,
so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be
utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The

.Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services

Page 10 of12



terms "substantially complete" and "substantially
completed" as applied to all or part of the Work refer
to Substantial Completion thereof

Construction Agreement and normally dealing with the
non-engineering or non-technical rather than strictly
construction-related aspects of the Contract
Documents.

40. Supplementary Conditions--That part of the
Contract Documents which amends or supplements the
General Conditions. ARTICLE 8

PROVISIONS
EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL

41. Total Project Costs--The sum of the
Construction Cost, allowances for contingencies, the
total costs of services of ENGINEER or other design
professionals and consultants, cost of land, rights-of
way, or compensation for damages to properties, or
OWNER's costs for legal, accounting, insurance
counseling or auditing services, or interest and
financing charges incurred in connection with the
Project, or the cost of other services to be provided by
others to OWNER pursuant to Exhibit B of this
Agreement.

42. lYork--The entire completed construction or
the various separately identifiable parts thereof
required to be provided under the Contract Documents
with respect to this Project. Work includes and is the
result of performing or fumishing labor, services, and
documentation necessary to produce such construction
and furnishing, installing, and incorporating all
materials and all equipment into such construction, all
as required by the Contract Documents.

43. Work Change Directive--A written directive
to Contractor issued on or after the Effective Date of
the Construction Agreement and signed by OWNER
upon recommendation ofthe ENGINEER, ordering an
addition, deletion, or revision in the Work, or
responding to differing or unforeseen subsurface or
physical conditions under which the Work is to be
performed or to emergencies. A Work Change
Directive will not change the Contract Price or the
Contract Times but is evidence that the parties expect
that the change directed or documented by a Work
Change Directive will be incorporated in a
subsequently issued Change Order following
negotiations by the parties as to its effect, if any, on the
Contract Price or Contract Times.

44. Written Amendment-X written amendment
of the Contract Documents signed by OWNER and
Contractor on or after the Effective Date of the

8.01 Exhibits Included

A. Exhibit A, "ENGINEER's Services," consisting
of seven pages.

B. Exhibit B, "OWNER's Responsibilities,"
consisting of two pages.

C. Exhibit C, "Payments to Engineer for Services
and Reimbursable Expenses," consisting of one page and
Appendix 1 to Exhibit C, "2014 Hourly Fee and Expense
Schedule" consisting of two pages.

D. Exhibit D, "Duties, Responsibilities and
Limitations of Authority of Resident Project
Representative," consisting of four pages.

E. Exhibit E, "Project Description", consisting of
two pages.

F. Exhibit F, Not Used.

G. Exhibit G, Not Used.

H. Exhibit H, Not Used.

1. Exhibit I, Not Used.

1. Exhibit J, Not Used.

8.02 Total Agreement

A. This Agreement (consisting of pages 1 to 12
inclusive, together with the Exhibits identified above)
constitutes the entire agreement between OWNER and
ENGINEER and supersedes all prior written or oral
understandings. This Agreement may only be amended,
supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly executed
written instrument.

Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services

Page 11 of 12



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the Effective Date of which is indicated
on page 1.

OWNER:

Mayor Arlyn Van Beek

By: _

Title: President of Board of City Conunissioners

Date Signed: _

AITEST: _

Name: Jim Ne ubauer

Title: City Administrator

Address for giving notices:

City ofMandan

205 2nd Avenue NW

Mandan, ND 58554 -3125

Designated Representative (paragraph 6.02 .A):

Jeff Wright

Tit le: Public Works Director

Phone Number: (701) 667-3240

Facsimile Number:

E-Mail Address: jwright@cityofula ndan.com

ENGINEER:

L"a~
By ~

Date Signed: _ _ ~LL---'--I---'-!"- _

ATTEST~JA--
Name: Kenne 1 1. Weber, PE

Titl e: Senior Project Manager

Address for giving notices :

Advanced Engineer ing and Environmental Services, Inc .

1815 Schafer Street, Suite 301

Bismarck, ND 58501

Designated Representative (paragraph 6.02 .A) :

Kenneth 1. Weber, PE

Title: Senior Project Manager

Phone Number: (701) 221-0530

Facsimile Number:-'(..!-70"--1~)2e=2'_'_1___'-0"_"5'_"3'_"1 _

E-Mail Address: Ken.Weber@ae2s.com

Standard Form of Agreement
Between Ow ner and Engineer for Professional Services

Page 12 of 12



This is EXHIBIT A, consisting of eight pages, referred to in
and part of the Agreement between OWNER and
ENGINEER for Professional Services dated July 15,2014.

ENGINEER's Services

Article 1 of the Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties.
ENGINEER shall provide Basic and Additional Services as set forth below.

PART I -- BASIC SERVICES

Al.OI Study and Report Phase-Not Used.

Al.02 Preliminary Design Phase

A. ENGINEER shall:

l. Arrange and conduct a maximum of two meetings and two field trips with the OWNER to further define
the intended improvements as generally described in the Agreement.

2. Develop preliminary improvement concepts resulting from the above meetings with general plans and
general specification elements.

3. Advise OWNER if additional reports, data, information, or services are necessary and assist OWNER in
obtaining such reports, data, information, or services.

4. Based on the information contained in the Preliminary Design Phase documents, develop an opinion of
probable Construction Cost and Total Project Cost.

4. Perform or provide the following additional Preliminary Design Phase tasks or deliverables: None
identified on the Effective Date of this Agreement.

5. Furnish the Preliminary Design Phase documents to and review them with OWNER.

B. ENGINEER's services under the Preliminary Design Phase will be considered complete on the date when
final copies ofthe Preliminary Design Phase documents have been delivered to OWNER.

Al.03 Design Phase

A. Upon authorization from OWNER, ENGINEER shall:

I. Arrange and conduct a maximum of three meetings with OWNER to further refine the intended
improvements as generally described in the Agreement.

2. Obtain required data and measurements for improvements included as part of this Agreement.

3. On the basis ofthe authorization, prepare final Drawings indicating the scope, extent, and character of the
Work to be performed and furnished by Contractor. Specifications will be prepared, where appropriate, in general
conformance with the 16-division format ofthe Construction Specifications Institute.

4. Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for OWNER's use in filing applications
for permits from or approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction to review or approve the fmal design
of the Project and assist OWNER in consultations with appropriate authorities.

5. Advise OWNER of any adjustments to the opinion ofprobable Construction Cost and any adjustments to
Total Project Costs known to ENGINEER.

Page I of 7 Pages
(Exhibit A - ENGINEER's Services)



6. Perform or provide the following additional Final Design Phase tasks or deliverables: None identified on
the Effective Date of this Agreement.

7. Prepare and furnish Bidding Documents for review and approval by OWNER, its legal counsel, and other
advisors, as appropriate.

8. Prepare and submit three [mal copies of the Bidding Documents and a revised opinion of probable
Construction Cost to OWNER.

B. In the event that the Work designed or specified by ENGINEER is to be performed or furnished under more
than one prime contract, or if ENGINEER's services are to be separately sequenced with the work of one or more
prime Contractors (such as in the case of fast-tracking), OWNER and ENGINEER shall, prior to commencement ofthe
Final Design Phase, develop a schedule for performance of ENGINEER's services during the Final Design, Bidding or
Negotiating, Construction, and Post-Construction Phases in order to sequence and coordinate properly such services as
are applicable to the work under such separate prime contracts. This schedule is to be prepared and included in or
become an amendment to Exhibit A whether or not the work under such contracts is to proceed concurrently.

B. The number of prime contracts for Work designed or specified by ENGINEER upon which the ENGINEER's
compensation has been established under this Agreement is one (1).

D. ENGINEER's services under the Design Phase will be considered complete on the date when the submittals
required by paragraph A1.03 have been delivered to OWNER.

A1.04 Bidding or Negotiating Phase

A. After acceptance by OWNER of the Bidding Documents and the most recent opmion of probable
Construction Costs as determined in the Design Phase, and upon authorization by OWNER to proceed, ENGINEER
shall:

1. Assist OWNER in advertising for and obtaining bids or negotiating proposals for the Work and, where
applicable, maintain a record of prospective bidders to whom Bidding Documents have been issued, and attend
pre-Bid conferences, if any.

2. Issue Addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the Bidding Documents.

3. Consult with OWNER as to the acceptability of subcontractors, suppliers, and other individuals and
entities proposed by Contractor for those portions of the Work as to which such acceptability is required by the
Bidding Documents.

4. Perform or provide the following additional Bidding or Negotiating Phase tasks or deliverables: Arrange
and conduct a Pre-bid meeting and field trip with the prospective BIDDERS to define the intended improvements
as generally described in the Bidding Documents.

5. Attend the Bid openings, prepare bid tabulation sheets, and assist OWNER in evaluating Bids or
proposals and in assembling and awarding contracts for the Work.

B. The Bidding or Negotiating Phase will be considered complete upon commencement of the Construction
Phase or upon cessation of negotiations with prospective Contractors.

A1.05 Construction Phase

A. Upon successful completion of the Bidding and Negotiating Phase, and upon authorization from OWNER,
ENGINEER shall:

1. General Administration of Construction Contract. Consult with OWNER and act as OWNER's
representative as provided in the General Conditions. The extent and limitations ofthe duties, responsibilities and
authority ofENGINEER as assigned in said General Conditions shall not be modified, except as ENGINEER may
otherwise agree in writing. All of OWNER's instructions to Contractor will be issued through ENGINEER who

Page 2 of 7 Pages
(Exhibit A - ENGINEER's Services)



shall have authority to act on behalf of OWNER in dealings with Contractor to the extent provided in this
Agreement and said General Conditions except as otherwise provided in writing.

2. Resident Project Representative (RPR). Provide the services of an RPR at the Site to assist the
ENGINEER and to provide more extensive observation of Contractor's work. Duties, responsibilities, and
authority of the RPR are as set forth in Exhibit D. The furnishing of such RPR's services will not extend
ENGINEER's responsibilities or authority beyond the specific limits set forth elsewhere in this Agreement.

3. Selecting Independent TestingLaboratory. Not Used.

4. Pre-Construction Conference. Participate in Pre-Construction Conferences prior to commencement of
Work at the Sites.

5. Baselines and Benchmarks. As appropriate, establish baselines and benchmarks for locating the Work,
which in ENGINEER's judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed.

6. Visits to Site and Observation ofConstruction. In connection with observations of Contractor's work in
progress while it is in progress:

a. Make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction, as ENGINEER
deems necessary, in order to observe as an experienced and qualified design professional the progress and
quality ofthe Work. Such visits and observations by ENGINEER, and the Resident Project Representative, if
any, are not intended to be exhaustive or to extend to every aspect of Contractor's work in progress or to
involve detailed inspections of Contractor's work in progress beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned
to ENGINEER in this Agreement and the Contract Documents, but rather are to be limited to spot checking,
selective sampling, and similar methods of general observation of the Work based on ENGINEER's exercise
of professional judgment as assisted by the Resident Project Representative, if any. Based on information
obtained during such visits and such observations, ENGINEER will determine in general if Contractor's work
is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents, and ENGINEER shall keep OWNER informed of
the progress of the Work.

b. The purpose of ENGINEER's visits to, and representation by the Resident Project Representative, if
any, at the Site, will be to enable ENGINEER to better carry out the duties and responsibilities assigned to and
undertaken by ENGINEER during the Construction Phase, and, in addition, by the exercise of ENGINEER's
efforts as an experienced and qualified design professional, to provide for OWNER a greater degree of
confidence that the completed Work will conform in general to the Contract Documents and that the integrity
of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents
has been implemented and preserved by Contractor. ENGIN,EER shall not, during such visits or as a result of
such observations of Contractor's work in progress, supervise, direct, or have control over Contractor's work,
nor shall ENGINEER have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or
procedures of construction selected by Contractor, for safety precautions and programs incident to
Contractor's work, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to
Contractor's furnishing and performing the Work. Accordingly, ENGINEER neither guarantees the
performance of any Contractor nor assumes responsibility for any Contractor's failure to furnish and perform
its work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

7. Defective Work. Recommend to OWNER that Contractor's work be disapproved and rejected while it is
in progress if, on the basis of such observations, ENGINEER believes that such work will not produce a completed
Project that conforms generally to the Contract Documents or that it will prejudice the integrity of the design
concept ofthe completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents.

8. Clarifications and Interpretations; Field Orders. Issue necessary clarifications and interpretations of the
Contract Documents as appropriate to the orderly completion of Contractor's work. Such clarifications and
interpretations will be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents.
ENGINEER may issue Field Orders authorizing minor variations from the requirements of the Contract
Documents.

Page 3 of 7 Pages
(Exhibit A - ENGINEER's Services)



9. Change Orders and Work Change Directives. Recommend Change Orders and Work Change Directives
to OWNER, as appropriate, and prepare Change Orders and Work Change Directives as required.

10. Shop Drawings and Samples. Review and take appropriate action with respect to Shop Drawings and
Samples and other data which Contractor is required to submit, but only for conformance with the information
given in the Contract Documents and compatibility with the design concept of the completed Project as a
functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents. Such reviews and approvals or other action will not
extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction or to safety precautions and
programs incident thereto.

11. Substitutes and "or-equal." Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or "or-equal"
materials and equipment proposed by Contractor, but subject to the provisions of paragraph A2.0 l.A.l3 of this
Exhibit A.

12. Inspections and Tests. Require such special inspections or tests of Contractor's work as deemed
reasonably necessary, and receive and review all certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals required by Laws
and Regulations or the Contract Documents. ENGINEER's review of such certificates will be for the purpose of
determining that the results certified indicate compliance with the Contract Documents and will not constitute an
independent evaluation that the content or procedures of such inspections, tests, or approvals comply with the
requirements of the Contract Documents. ENGINEER shall be entitled to rely on the results of such tests.

13. Disagreements between OWNER and Contractor. . Render formal written decisions on all claims of
OWNER and Contractor relating to the acceptability of Contractor's work or the interpretation of the requirements
of the Contract Documents pertaining to the execution and progress of Contractor's work. In rendering such
decisions, ENGINEER shall be fair and not show partiality to OWNER or Contractor and shall not be liable in
connection with any decision rendered in good faith in such capacity.

14. Applicationsfor Payment. Based on ENGINEER's observations as an experienced and qualified design
professional and on review ofApplications for Payment and accompanying supporting documentation:

a. Determine the amounts that ENGINEER recommends Contractor be paid. Such recommendations
of payment will be in writing and will constitute ENGINEER's representation to OWNER, based on such
observations and review, that, to the best of ENGINEER's knowledge, information and belief, Contractor's
work has progressed to the point indicated, the quality of such work is generally in accordance with the
Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial
Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract Documents and to any other
qualifications stated in the recommendation), and the conditions precedent to Contractor's being entitled to
such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is ENGINEER's responsibility to observe
Contractor's work. In the case of unit price work, ENGINEER's recommendations of payment will include
final determinations of quantities and classifications of Contractor's work (subject to any subsequent
adjustments allowed by the Contract Documents). The responsibilities of ENGINEER contained in paragraph
Al.05.A.6.a are expressly subject to the limitations set forth in paragraph Al.05.A.6.b and other express or
general limitations in this Agreement and elsewhere.

b. By recommending any payment, ENGINEER shall not thereby be deemed to have represented that
observations made by ENGINEER to check the quality or quantity of Contractor's work as it is performed and
furnished have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of Contractor's work in progress, or involved
detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to ENGINEER in this
Agreement and the Contract Documents. Neither ENGINEER's review of Contractor's work for the purposes
of recommending payments nor ENGINEER's recommendation of any payment including final payment will
impose on ENGINEER responsibility to supervise, direct, or control Contractor's work in progress or for the
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or safety precautions or programs
incident thereto, or Contractor's compliance with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's fumishing
and performing the Work. It will also not impose responsibility on ENGINEER to make any examination to
ascertain how or for what purposes Contractor has used the moneys paid on account of the Contract Price, or
to determine that title to any portion of the work in progress, materials, or equipment has passed to OWNER
free and clear of any liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, or that there may not be other matters
at issue between OWNER and Contractor that might affect the amount that should be paid.

Page 4 of 7 Pages
(Exhibit A - ENGINEER's Services)



15. Contractor's Completion Documents.

a. Receive and review maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, and guarantees.

b. Receive bonds, certificates, or other evidence of insurance not previously submitted and required by
the Contract Documents, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, Shop Drawings, Samples and other
data approved as provided under paragraph A1.05.A.1O, and the annotated record documents which are to be
assembled by Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents to obtain final payment. The extent of
such ENGINEER's review will be limited as provided in paragraph Al.05.A.I0.

c. ENGINEER shall transmit these documents to OWNER.

16. Substantial Completion. Promptly after notice from Contractor that Contractor considers the entire Work
ready for its intended use, in company with OWNER and Contractor, conduct an inspection to determine if the
Work is Substantially Complete. If after considering any objections of OWNER, ENGINEER considers the Work
Substantially Complete, ENGINEER shall deliver written notice of such to OWNER and Contractor if requested
in writing to do so.

17. Additional Tasks.
a. Perform Integration and Control interface of new electrical control panels and equipment with the

SCADA system.
b. Prepare and furnish to OWNER Record Drawings showing appropriate record information based on

Project annotated record documents received from Contractor.

18. Final Notice ofAcceptability ofthe Work. Conduct a [mal inspection to determine if the completed Work
of Contractor is acceptable so that ENGINEER may recommend, in writing, final payment to Contractor.
Accompanying the recommendation for [mal payment, ENGINEER shall also provide a notice that the Work is
acceptable (subject to the provisions of paragraph Al.05.A.14.b) to the best of ENGINEER's knowledge,
information, and belief and based on the extent of the services provided by ENGINEER under this Agreement.

B. Duration of Construction Phase. The Construction Phase will commence with the execution of the first
Construction Agreement for the Project or any part thereof and will terminate upon written recommendation by
ENGINEER for final payment to Contractors. If the Project involves more than one prime contract as indicated in
paragraph A I.03.C, Construction Phase services may be rendered at different times in respect to the separate contracts.

C. Limitation of Responsibilities. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any
Contractor, or of any oftheir subcontractors, suppliers, or of any other individual or entity performing or furnishing any
of the Work. ENGINEER shall not be responsible for failure of any Contractor to perform or furnish the Work in
accordance with the Contract Documents.

A1.06 Post-Construction Phase

A. Upon authorization from OWNER, ENGINEER, during the Post-Construction Phase, shall:

1. Provide assistance in connection with the testing and adjusting Project Work.

2. Together with OWNER, visit the Project to observe any apparent defects in the Work, assist OWNER in
consultations and discussions with Contractor concerning correction of any such defects, and make
recommendations as to replacement or correction of Defective Work, ifpresent.

3. In company with OWNER or OWNER's representative, provide an inspection of the Project within one
month before the end of the Correction Period to ascertain whether any portion of the Work is subject to
correction.

C. The Post-Construction Phase services may commence during the Construction Phase and, if not otherwise
modified in this Exhibit A, will terminate at the end of the Correction Period.

Page 5 00 Pages
(Exhibit A - ENGINEER's Services)



PART 2 -- ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A2.01 Additional Sen/ices Requiring OWNER's Authorization

A. If authorized by OWNER, ENGINEER shall furnish or obtain from others Additional Services of the types
listed below. These services will be paid for by OWNER as indicated in Article 4 ofthe Agreement.

1. Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished under Basic
Services) for private or governmental grants, loans or advances in connection with the Project; preparation or
review of environmental assessments and impact statements; review and evaluation of the effects on the design
requirements for the Project of any such statements and documents prepared by others; and assistance in obtaining
approvals of authorities having jurisdiction over the anticipated environmental impact of the Project.

2. Services to make measured drawings of or to investigate existing conditions or facilities, or to verify the
accuracy of drawings or other informationfurnished by OWNER.

3. Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the portions of the Project
designed or specified by ENGINEER or its design requirements including, but not limited to, changes in size,
complexity, OWNER's schedule, character of construction, or method of financing; and revising previously
accepted studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, or Contract Documents when such revisions are required by
changes in Laws and Regulations enacted subsequent to the Effective Date of this Agreement or are due to any
other causes beyond ENGINEER's control.

4. Services resulting from OWNER's request to evaluate additional Study and Report Phase alternative
solutions beyond those identified in paragraph A1.0 I.AA.

5. Services required as a result of OWNER's providing incomplete or incorrect Project information with
respect to Exhibit B.

6. Providing renderings or models for OWNER's use.

7. Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to, detailed consideration of operations,
maintenance, and overhead expenses; the preparation of feasibility studies, cash flow and economic evaluations,
rate schedules, and appraisals; assistance in obtaining financing for the Project; evaluating processes available for
licensing, and assisting OWNER in obtaining process licensing; detailed quantity surveys of materials, equipment,
and labor; and audits or inventories required in connection with construction performed by OWNER.

8. Furnishing services of ENGINEER's Consultants for other than Basic Services.

9. Services attributable to more prime construction contracts than specified in paragraph A1.03.C.

10. Services during out-of-town travel required of ENGINEER other than for visits to the Site or OWNER's
office.

11. Preparing for, coordinating with, participating in and responding to structured independent review
processes, including, but not limited to, construction management, cost estimating, project peer review, value
engineering, and constructability review requested by OWNER; and performing or furnishing services required to
revise studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, or other Bidding Documents as a result of such review processes.

12. Preparing additional Bidding Documents or Contract Documents for alternate bids or prices requested by
OWNER for the Work or a portion thereof.

13. Determining the acceptability of substitute materials and equipment proposed during the Bidding or
Negotiating Phase when substitution prior to the award ofcontracts is allowed by the Bidding Documents.

14. Assistance in connection with Bid protests, rebidding, or renegotiating contracts for construction,
materials, equipment, or services.

Page 6 of7 Pages
(Exhibit A - ENGINEER's Services)



15. Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Contractor to perform its work other than as
required under paragraph A1.05.A.5, and any type of property surveys or related engineering services needed for
the transfer of interests in real property; and providing other special field surveys.

16. Providing Construction Phase services beyond the Construction Contract completion dates.

17. Providing assistance in resolving any Hazardous Environmental Condition in compliance with current
Laws and Regulations.

18. Not Used.

19. Preparation ofoperation and maintenance manuals beyond what is provided by the Contractor.

20. Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for OWNER in any litigation, arbitration or other
dispute resolution process related to the Project.

21. Providing more extensive services required to enable ENGINEER to issue notices or certifications
requested by OWNER under paragraph 6.01.G ofthe Agreement.

22. Other services performed or furnished by ENGINEER not otherwise provided for in this Agreement.

A2.02 Required Additional Sen/ices

A. ENGINEER shall perform or furnish, without requesting or receiving specific advance authorization from
OWNER, the Additional Services of the types listed below. ENGINEER shall advise OWNER in writing promptly
after starting any such Additional Services.

1. Services in connection with Work Change Directives and Change Orders to reflect changes requested by
OWNER so as to make the compensation commensurate with the extent ofthe Additional Services rendered.

2. Services in making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned by the acceptance of substitute
materials or equipment other than "or-equal" items; and services after the award ofthe Construction Agreement in
evaluating and determining the acceptability of a substitution which is found to be inappropriate for the Project or
an excessive number of substitutions.

3. Services resulting from significant delays, changes, or price increases occurring as a direct or indirect
result ofmaterials, equipment, or energy shortages.

4. Additional or extended services during construction made necessary by (I) emergencies or acts of God
endangering the Work, (2) an occurrence of a Hazardous Environmental Condition, (3) Work damaged by fire or
other cause during construction, (4) a significant amount of defective, neglected, or delayed work by Contractor,
(5) acceleration of the progress schedule involving services beyond normal working hours, or (6) default by
Contractor.

5. Services (other than Basic Services during the Post-Construction Phase) in connection with any partial
utilization of any part of the Work by OWNER prior to Substantial Completion.

6. Evaluating an unreasonable claim or an excessive number of claims submitted by Contractor or others in
connection with the Work.

7. Providing in company with OWNER or OWNER's representative, an inspection of the Project after
the Correction Period to ascertain whether any portion of the Work is subject to warranty.

Page 7 of? Pages
(Exhibit A - ENGINEER's Services)



This is EXHIBIT B, consisting of two pages, referred to in and
part of the Agreement between OWNER and ENGINEER
for Professional Services dated July 15,2014.

OWNER's Responsibilities

Article 2 ofthe Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement ofthe parties.

B2.0 1 In addition to other responsibilities of OWNER as set forth in this Agreement, OWNER shall:

A. Provide ENGINEER with all criteria and full information as to OWNER's requirements for the Project,
including design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, flexibility, and
expandability, and any budgetary limitations; and furnish copies of all design and construction standards which
OWNER will require to be included in the Drawings and Specifications; and furnish copies of OWNER's standard
forms, conditions, and related documents for ENGINEER to include in the Bidding Documents, when applicable.

B. Furnish to ENGINEER any other available information pertinent to the Project including reports and data
relative to previous designs, or investigation at or adjacent to the Site.

C. Following ENGINEER's assessment of initially-available Project information and data and upon
ENGINEER's request, furnish or otherwise make available such additional Project related information and data as is
reasonably required to enable ENGINEER to complete its Basic and Additional Services.

D. Give prompt written notice to ENGINEER whenever OWNER observes or otherwise becomes aware of a
Hazardous Environmental Condition or of any other development that affects the scope or time of performance of
ENGINEER's services, or any defect or nonconformance in ENGINEER's services or in the work ofany Contractor.

E. Authorize ENGINEER to provide Additional Services as set forth in Part 2 of Exhibit A of the Agreement as
required.

F. Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for ENGINEER to enter upon public and private property
as required for ENGINEER to perform services under the Agreement.

G. Examine all alternate solutions, studies, reports, sketches, Drawings, Specifications, proposals, and other
documents presented by ENGINEER (including obtaining advice of an attorney, insurance counselor, and other
advisors or consultants as OWNER deems appropriate with respect to such examination) and render in writing timely
decisions pertaining thereto.

H. Provide reviews, approvals, and permits from all govermnental authorities having jurisdiction to approve all
phases of the Project designed or specified by ENGINEER and such reviews, approvals, and consents from others as
may be necessary for completion of each phase ofthe Project.

1. Provide, as required for the Project:

1. Accounting, bond and financial advisory, independent cost estimating, and insurance counseling services.

2. Legal services with regard to issues pertaining to the Project as OWNER requires, Contractor raises, or
ENGINEER reasonably requests.

3. Such auditing services as OWNER requires to ascertain how or for what purpose Contractor has used the
moneys paid.

4. Placement and payment for advertisement for Bids in appropriate publications.

Page 1 of2 Pages
(Exhibit B - OWNER's Responsibilities)



J. Advise ENGINEER of the identity and scope of services of any independent consultants employed by
OWNER to perform or furnish services in regard to the Project, including, but not limited to, cost estimating, project
peer review, value engineering, and constructability review.

K. Furnish to ENGINEER data as to OWNER's anticipated costs for services to be provided by others for
OWNER so that ENGINEER may make the necessary calculations to develop and periodically adjust ENGINEER's
opinion of Total Project Costs.

L. OWNER designated Construction Manager: Not Used.

M. If more than one prime contract is to be awarded for the Work designed or specified by ENGINEER,
designate a person or entity to have authority and responsibility for coordinating the activities among the various prime
Contractors, and defme and set forth the duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such individual or entity
and the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and authority of ENGINEER as an attachment to this Exhibit B
that is to be mutually agreed upon and made a part ofthis Agreement before such services begin.

N. Attend the pre-bid conference, bid opening, pre-construction conference, construction progress and other
Project related meetings, and Substantial Completion and final payment inspections.

O. Provide the services of an independent testing laboratory, as Owner deems necessary to perform additional
inspections, tests, and approvals of Samples, materials, and equipment, or to evaluate the performance of materials,
equipment, and facilities of OWNER, prior to their incorporation into the Work with appropriate professional
interpretation thereof

P. Provide inspection or monitoring services by an individual or entity other than ENGINEER (and disclose the
identity of such individual or entity to ENGINEER) as OWNER determines necessary to verify:

1. That Contractor is complying with any Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's performing and
furnishing the Work.

2. That Contractor is taking all necessary precautions for safety of persons or property and complying with
any special provisions of the Contract Documents applicable to safety. Provide ENGINEER with the findings and
reports generated by the entities providing services pursuant to paragraphs B2.01.0 and P.

Q. Provide ENGINEER with the fmdings and reports generated by the entities providing services pursuant to
paragraph B.2.01.0. and P.

R. Perform or provide the following additional services: None identified on the Effective Date of this
Agreement.

Page 2 of 2 Pages
(Exhibit B - OWNER's Responsibilities)



This is EXHIBIT C, consisting of one page, referred to in and
part of the Agreement between OWNER and ENGINEER
for Professional Services dated July 15,2014.

Payments to ENGINEER for Services and Reimbursable Expenses

Article 4 of the Agreement is amended and
supplemented to include the following agreement of
the parties:

ARTICLE 4 -- PAYMENTS TO THE ENGINEER

C4.01 For Basic Services

A. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for Basic
Services as set forth in Exhibit A as follows:

1. An amount equal to the cumulative
hours charged to the Project by each class of
ENGINEER's employees times Standard Hourly
Rates for each applicable billing class for all
services performed on the Project, plus
Reimbursable Expenses and ENGINEER's
Consultant's charges, ifany.

2. ENGINEER's Reimbursable Expenses
Schedule and Standard Hourly Rates are attached
to this Exhibit C as Appendix 1.

3. The total compensation for services
under Paragraph C4.01 is $73,000.00 based on
the following assumed distribution of
compensation.

6. The Standard Hourly Rates and
Reimbursable Expenses Schedule may be
adjusted annually (as of January 1) to reflect
equitable changes in the compensation payable
to ENGINEER.

C4.02 For Additional Services Requiring
OWNER's Authorization in Advance

A. OWNER shall pay ENGINEER for
services and reimbursable expenses for
Additional Services set forth in Article A2.01 per
the Hourly Fee and Expense Schedule included
in Appendix 1 of Exhibit C.

C4.03 For RequiredAdditional Services

Not Used.

a. Design Phase
b. Bidding Phase
c. Construction Phase
d. Post Construction Phase

$ 30,000.00
$ 9,000.00
$ 30,000.00
$ 4,000.00

4. ENGINEER may alter the distribution
of compensation between individual phases
noted herein to be consistent with services
actually rendered, but shall not exceed the total
compensation amount unless approved in writing
by OWNER.

5. The amounts billed for ENGINEER's
services under paragraph C4.01 will be based on
the cumulative hours charged to the Project
during the billing period by each class of
ENGINEER's employees times Standard Hourly
Rates for each applicable billing class, plus
Reimbursable Expenses and ENGINEER's
Consultant's charges.

Page 1 of I pages
(Exhibit C - Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses)



This is Appendix 1 to EXHIBIT C, consisting of one page,
referred to in and part of the Agreement between OWNER
and ENGINEER for Professional Services dated July 15,
2014.

2014 Hourly Rate and Reimbursable Expense Schedule

MarketingConsultant I $ 74.00
MarketingConsultantII $ 93.00
MarketingConsultantIII $109.00
MarketingConsultant IV $124.00
MarketingConsultantV $142.00
SeniorConsultant $156.00

Communication SpecialistI $ 78.00
Communication SpecialistI1 $ 90.00
Communication SpecialistIII $103.00
Communication SpecialistIV $128.00
Communication SpecialistIV $136.00

ITI $ 88.00
IT II $108.00
IT III $124.00
IT III $140.00
I IT III $148.00
TManager $160.00

FinancialAnalystI $ 77.00
FinancialAnalystII $ 92.00
Financial AnalystIII $108.00
FinancialAnalystIV $121.00
FinancialAnalystV $137.00
FinancialAnalystVI $156.00
FinancialAnalystVII $171.00
FinancialAnalystVIII $187.00

Administrative I $ 52.00
Administrative II $ 64.00
Administrative III $ 75.00
Administrative IV $ 87.00
Administrative V $ 96.00
Administrative VI $105.00

InternI $ 44.00
InternII $ 50.00
InternIII $ 54.00
InternIV $ 60.00
InternV $ 71.00

Labor Rates
EngineerI $ 96.00
EngineerII $112.00
EngineerIII $136.00
EngineerIV $155.00
EngineerV $171.00
EngineerVI $195.00
EngineerVII $205.00
EngineerVlIl $213.00

ProgramCoordinator I $155.00
ProgramCoordinator II $164.00
ProjectManager 1 $162.00
ProjectManager II $187.00
SeniorConsultant $185.00
Technical Expert I $220.00
Technical ExpertII $235.00
Technical Expert III Negotiable

I&CTechnician 1 $ 89.00
I&CTechnician II $ 99.00
l&C Technician III $113.00
I&CTechnician IV $123.00
I&CTechnician V $136.00
l&C Technician VI $144.00
I&CTechnicianVII $152.00

LandSurveyorI $ 86.00
LandSurveyorII $105.00
LandSurveyorIII $112.00
LandSurveyorIV $128.00
LandSurveyorV $146.00
LandSurveyorVI $154.00

Engineering Technician I $ 58.00
Engineering Technician II $ 75.00
Engineering Technician III $ 89.00
Engineering Technician IV $104.00
Engineering Technician V $119.00
Engineering Technician VI $133.00
Engineering Technician VII $145.00

GIS SpecialistI $ 74.00
GIS SpecialistII $ 93.00
GIS SpecialistIII $109.00
GIS SpecialistIV $124.00
GIS SpecialistV $142.00
GIS SpecialistVI $160.00

LandTitleAgent I $ 72.00
Land TitleAgent II $ 90.00
LandTitleAgent III $106.00
LandTitleAgent IV $120.00

Operations SpecialistI $ 76.00
Operations SpecialistI I $ 87.00
Operations SpecialistIII $109.00
Operations SpecialistI V $ 124.00
Operations SpecialistV $ 143.00

ProjectCoordinator I $ 93.00
ProjectCoordinator II $ 108.00

ProjectCoordinatorIII
ProjectCoordinatorIV

$ 122.00
$ 134.00

Page1 of 1 pages
(Exhibit C - Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses)



Reimbursable Expense Rates
Transportation
SurveyVehicle
ServiceVehicle- 1 Ton
Air Transportation
Photocopies 8y," xII"
Plots- ColorBond
Plots- Monochrome BondlVellum
Plots- Film/PhotoHighGloss
DigitalImaging
LaserPrintouts8Y2" xl l"
ColorLaserPrintouts/Copies 8Y2" xl l"
Fax
Projector
Total Station- Robotic
Pro-XRGPS
Fast StaticlRTK GPS
3D LaserScanner
SonarMite
SurveyMonument
FencePosts
SurveyLath
SurveyStakes/Hubs
All TerrainVehiclelBoat
HydrantPressureRecorders
TelemetryRadio
PressureRecorder
Pump StationMonitor
Area VelocityModule
RainGauge
I&C Supplies
Lab TestingEquipment
ThermalImagingCamera
PowerQualityAnalyzer
ProcessCalibration Instmment
PortableOscilloscope
AlItennaVVatt-Meter
In-houseLodging
OutsideServices**
Out of PocketExpenses***
RentalCar

$O.65/mile
$O.70/mile
$1.00/mile
$I,600/hour
$0.10/copy
$1.25/s.f.
$O.75/s.f.
$2.00/s.f.
$IO.OO/day
$0.20/page
$O.68/page
$OAO/page
$25.00/hour
$35.00/hour
$I5.00/hour
$50.00/hour
$IOO.OO/hour
$50.00/day
$5.00/each
$8.00/each
$22.00/bundle
$13.00/bundle
$IOO.OO/day
$IO.OO/day
$lO.OO/day
$5.00/day
$24.00/day
$30.00/day
$12.00/day
$lO.OO/unit
$500.00/day
$300.00/day
$500.00/week
$200.00/day
$125.00/day
$50.00/day
$150.00/day
cost *1.15
cost*1.15
cost*1.20

* Positiontitlesare for laborrate gradepurposes only.
** Includes laboratory testing, architectural and engineering
consultants, surveying, etc.
*** Includes toll telephone, shipping, postage, subsistence,
technicalliterature, equipmentrental,etc.

These ratesare subjectto adjustment eachyear onJanuary1.

These rates are subject to adjustment each year on January 1.

Page 2 of2 pages
(Appendix 1 to Exhibit C - Reimbursable Expenses Schedule)



This is EXHIBIT D, consisting of four pages, referred to in
and part of the Agreement between OWNER and
ENGINEER for Professional Services dated July 15,2014.

Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative

Paragraph l.OIC ofthe Agreement is amended and supplemented to include the following agreement of the parties:

D6.02 Resident Project Representative

A. ENGINEER shall furnish a Resident Project Representative ("RPR"), assistants, and other field staff to
assist ENGINEER in observing progress and quality of the Work. The RPR,assistants, and other field staff under
this Exhibit D may provide full time representation or may provide representation to a lesser degree.

B. Through such additional observations of Contractor's work in progress and field checks of materials and
equipment by the RPR and assistants, ENGINEER shall endeavor to provide further protection for OWNER against
defects and deficiencies in the Work. However, ENGINEER shall not, during such visits or as a result of such
observations of Contractor's work in progress, supervise, direct, or have control over the Contractor's Work nor
shall ENGINEER have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or
procedures selected by Contractor, for safety precautions and programs incident to the Contractor's work in
progress, for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's performing
and furnishing the Work, or responsibility of construction for Contractor's failure to furnish and perform the Work
in accordance with the Contract Documents. In addition, the specific limitations set forth in section A.l.05 of
Exhibit A of the Agreement are applicable.

C. The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are limited to those of ENGINEER in the Agreement with the
OWNER and in the Contract Documents, and are further limited and described as follows:

1. General: RPR is ENGINEER's agent at the Site, will act as directed by and under the supervision of
ENGINEER, and will confer with ENGINEER regarding RPR's actions. RPR's dealings in matters
pertaining to the Contractor's work in progress shall in general be with ENGINEER and Contractor,
keeping OWNER advised as necessary. RPR's dealings with subcontractors shall only be through or
with the full knowledge and approval of Contractor. RPR shall generally communicate with OWNER
with the knowledge of and under the direction of ENGINEER.

2. Schedules: Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample submittals, and
schedule of values prepared by Contractor and consult with ENGINEER concerning acceptability.

3. Conferences and Meetings: Attend meetings with Contractor, such as preconstruct ion conferences,
progress meetings, job conferences and other project-related meetings, and prepare and circulate copies
of minutes thereof.

4. Liaison:
a. Serve as ENGINEER's liaison with Contractor, working principally through Contractor's

superintendent and assist in understanding the intent of the Contract Documents.

b. Assist ENGINEER in serving as OWNER's liaison with Contractor when Contractor's operations
affect OWNER's on-Site operations.

c. Assist in obtaining from OWNER additional details or information, when required for proper
execution of the Work.

5. Interpretation ofContract Documents: Report to ENGINEER when clarifications and interpretations of
the Contract Documents are needed and transmit to Contractor clarifications and interpretations as
issued by ENGINEER.

Page I of4 Pages
(Exhibit D - Resident Project Representative)



6. Shop Drawings and Samples:
a. Record date ofreceipt of Samples and approved Shop Drawings.

b. Receive Samples which are furnished at the Site by Contractor, and notify ENGINEER of
availability of Samples for examination.

c. Advise ENGINEER and Contractor of the commencement of any portion of the Work requiring a
Shop Drawing or Sample submittal for which RPR believes that the submittal has not been
approved by ENGINEER.

7. Modifications: Consider and evaluate Contractor's suggestions for modifications in Drawings or
Specifications and report with RPR's recommendations to ENGINEER. Transmit to Contractor
decisions as issued by ENGINEER.

8. Review ofWorkand Rejection ofDefective Work:
a. Conduct on-Site observations of Contractor's work in progress to assist ENGINEER III

determining if the Work is in general proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents.

b. Report to ENGINEER whenever RPR believes that any part of Contractor's work in progress will
not produce a completed Project that conforms generally to the Contract Documents or will
prejudice the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as
indicated in the Contract Documents, or has been damaged, or does not meet the requirements of
any inspection, test or approval required to be made; and advise ENGINEER of that part of work
in progress that RPR believes should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for
observation, or requires special testing, inspection or approval.

9. Inspections, Tests, and System Startups:
a. Consult with ENGINEER in advance of scheduled major inspections, tests, and systems startups

of important phases of the Work.

b. Verify that tests, equipment, and systems start-ups and operating and maintenance training are
conducted in the presence of appropriate OWNER's personnel, and that Contractor maintains
adequate records thereof.

c. Observe, record, and report to ENGINEER appropriate details relative to the test procedures and
systems startups.

d. Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having jurisdiction over the
Project, record the results of these inspections, and report to ENGINEER.

10. Records:
a. Maintain orderly files for correspondence, reports of job conferences, reproductions of original

Contract Documents including all Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change Directives,
Addenda, additional Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the Contract, ENGINEER's
clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents, progress reports, Shop Drawing and
Sample submittals received from and delivered to Contractor, and other Project related documents.

b. Maintain construction observation notes, recording Contractor's hours on the Site, weather
conditions, data relative to questions of Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change Directives, or
changed conditions, Site visitors, daily activities, decisions, observations in general, and specific
observations in more detail as in the case of observing test procedures; and send copies to
ENGINEER.

c. Record names, addresses and telephone numbers of all Contractors, subcontractors, and major
suppliers of materials and equipment.

d. Maintain records for use in preparing Project documentation.

Page 2 of4 Pages
(Exhibit D - Resident Project Representative)



e. Not Used.

11. Reports:
a. Prepare periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of Contractor's compliance with

the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample submittals.

b. Draft and recommend to ENGINEER proposed Change Orders, Work Change Directives, and
Field Orders. Obtain backup material from Contractor.

c. Furnish to ENGINEER and OWNER copies of all inspection, test, and system startup reports.

d. Report immediately to ENGINEER the occurrence of any Site accidents, any Hazardous
Environmental Conditions, emergencies, or acts of God endangering the Work, and property
damaged by fire or other causes.

12. Payment Requests: Review Applications for Payment with Contractor for compliance with the
established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations to ENGINEER, noting
particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the schedule of values, Work completed, and
materials and equipment delivered at the Site but not incorporated in the Work.

13. Certificates, Operation and Maintenance Manuals: During the course of the Work, verify that materials
and equipment certificates, operation and maintenance manuals and other data required by the
Specifications to be assembled and furnished by Contractor are applicable to the items actually
installed and in accordance with the Contract Documents, and have these documents delivered to
ENGINEER for review and forwarding to OWNER prior to payment for that part of the Work.

14. Completion:
a. Before ENGINEER issues a Certificate of Substantial Completion, submit to Contractor a list of

observed items requiring completion or correction.

b. Observe whether Contractor has arranged for inspections required by Laws and Regulations,
including but not limited to those to be performed by public agencies having jurisdiction over the
Work.

c. Participate in a final inspection in the company of ENGINEER, OWNER, and Contractor and
prepare a final list of items to be completed or corrected.

a. Observe whether all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make
recommendations to ENGINEER concerning acceptance and issuance of the Notice of
Acceptability of the Work.

D. Resident Project Representative shall not:

1.' Authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of materials or equipment
(including "or-equal" items).

2. Exceed limitations of ENGINEER's authority as set forth III the Agreement or the Contract
Documents.

3. Undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, subcontractors, suppliers, or Contractor's
superintendent.

4. Advise on, issue directions relative to or assume control over any aspect of the means, methods,
techniques, sequences or procedures of Contractor's work unless such advice or directions are
specifically required by the Contract Documents.

5. Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over safety precautions and programs III

connection with the activities or operations of OWNER or Contractor.

Page 3 of 4 Pages
(Exhibit D - Resident Project Representative)



6. Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted off-site by others except as
specifically authorized by ENGINEER.

7. Accept Shop Drawing or Sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor.

8. Authorize OWNER to occupy the Project in whole or in part.

Page 4 of 4 Pages
(Exhibit D - Resident Project Representative)



This is EXHIBIT E, consisting of two pages, referred to in
and part of the Agreement between OWNER and
ENGINEER for Professional Services dated July 15,2014.

Project Description

The project consists of: installation of a new PRY vault and interconnecting pipes near the intersection of 6th Avenue
NW and Boundary Road NW; installation of Collins Avenue Reservoir by-pass piping at the intersection of 1st

Street NE and 5th Avenue NE: and installation of a 2" PRY system on the Service line to the serve Centre Inc. near
6th Avenue SE and I" Street SE. In general, the project services consist of the following major elements:

DESIGN PHASE 040
The Design Phase is comprised of the primary tasks identified below:

1. Project Kick-offMeeting

2. Design Survey
a. Survey coordination
b. Topographic survey of the three sites
c. Coordination with One Call
d. Complete utility survey
e. Tie in street R/W and highway R/W

3. Pennitting
a. No permits anticipated.

4. 30% Progress Review
a. 30% Preliminary Cost Estimate to verify project budgets based on detail conditions

5. Plans, Specifications, and Bid Documents - Prepare plans, specifications, and bid documents for the
installation of the water system improvements as detailed above. Final design will include:
a. Plan and profile views a each of the specific locations
b. Prepare details for watermain installation.
c. Prepare plans and specifications to outline work necessary to receive bids.
d. Submit plans and specifications to reviewing agencies. Respond as required.

6. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost: ENGINEER will prepare Opinions of Probable Construction
Cost and revise as required for 60% and 100% plan and specification reviews.

• Summary of DeliverabIes
a. 60% Plans and Specifications
b. 100% Plans and Specifications

• Summary of Design Phase Meetings
a. 60% Plan and Specification Review.
b. 100% Plan and Specification Review.

BIDDING PHASE 050
The Bidding Phase is comprised of the primary tasks identified below:

1. Advertisement: ENGINEER to coordinate with the OWNER for the advertisement of one Bid in the
official newspaper and regional construction plan exchanges.

Page 1 of2 Pages
(Exhibit E - Project Description)



2. Interpretation and Clarifications: ENGINEER to communicate with prospective bidders and issue
addenda as required.

3. Meetings: ENGINEER to arrange and conduct bid opening. Attend City Commission for
recommendation of Bid Award.

4. Bid Evaluation and Recommendations: ENGINEER to prepare Bid Tab and Recommendations for
City.

5. Notice of Award: ENGINEER will coordinate the execution of Notice of Award

CONSTRUCTION PHASE 060
The Construction Phase is comprised of the primary tasks identified below:

1. Contracts: ENGINEER will coordinate the execution of Contracts and Notice to Proceed.

2. Surveying: ENGINEER shall provide surveying and construction staking for water system
improvements.

3. Meetings: ENGINEER shall arrange and conduct one Pre-Construction conference for the project as
well as bi-monthly project progress meetings for the project.

4. Shop Drawing Review: ENGINEER shall administer the submittal process, and provide review of
product submittals for the project.

5. Construction Observations: ENGINEER to provide construction administration and construction
observation, maintain records and provide assistance to manage project progress, problems, and
potential scope changes, and complete project closeout procedures and Final Inspection and
Acceptance for the project.

6. Project Administration: ENGINEER will administer and process project activities such a pay requests,
change order, and other construction processes

7. Project Management: ENGINEER will provide project management services to monitor construction
progress, work quality and project costs.

POST-CONSTRUCTION PHASE 070
The Post-Construction Phase is comprised of the primary tasks identified below:

1. Wananty: ENGINEER shall coordinate warranty items, monitor warranty period, and provide an end
of warranty inspection.

2. Record Drawings: ENGINEER shall revise drawings and provide fmal deliverables including
Operation and Maintenance Manuals and as-built record drawings.

Page 2 of2 Pages
(Exhibit E - Project Description)



 
1) Motion to assign the respective portfolios to commissioners as presented. 

 
 

Portfolio 7/15/2014 

Cemetery Braun, Mike 

Health Inspection Braun, Mike 

Business Development Braun, Mike 

Public Buildings Laber, Shauna 

Assessing Laber, Shauna 

Building Inspection Laber, Shauna 

Planning & Zoning Laber, Shauna 

Municipal Court Laber, Shauna 

Engineering Rohr, Dennis 

Water and Sewer Treatment Rohr, Dennis 

Mandan Parking Authority Rohr, Dennis 

Streets forestry Rohr, Dennis 

Waterline & Sewerline Maintenance Rohr, Dennis 

Solid Waste Utility Rohr, Dennis 

Street Light Utility Rohr, Dennis 

Morton Mandan Public Library Tibke, Sandy 

Finance Tibke, Sandy 

Mandan Airport Authority Tibke, Sandy 

Fire Van Beek, Arlyn 

Police Van Beek, Arlyn 

 
 

2) Motion to appoint Commissioner Tibke as Vice President of the Board and Commissioner Laber 
to the Morton County Planning & Zoning  

 
 
*Appointment of Commissioner Tibke as Vice President 
*Appointment of Commission Laber to the Morton County Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
 
 

New Business No. 4 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 1186 

 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING LAND INTO THE CITY OF MANDAN, MORTON COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA 
 
WHEREAS, the owners of land described as Government Lots 3 & 4 and part of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of 
Section 3, Township 138N, Range 81W of the 5th Principal Meridian, Morton County, North Dakota have 
requested that the City annex this property; and 
 
WHEREAS, this action will allow creation of an assessment district for the funding of drainage 
improvements that benefit the area; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Dakota Century Code Section 40-51.2-03 provides that if the owners of at least three-
fourths of the assessed value of the property being requested for annexation request such action in 
writing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended proceeding with this annexation; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, notice was published in a newspaper of general circulation within the City of Mandan on 
6/13/2014 and a certified letter announcing the intent to annex was delivered by the USPS to Morton 
County as required by North Dakota Century Code 40-51.2-05. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton 
County, North Dakota as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Description of Parcel of Land being Annexed.  All that land not currently within the 
corporate limits of the City of Mandan that is described as follows: 
 

Beginning at the southwest corner of Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 3rd 
Addition of the City of Mandan, Morton County North Dakota; thence 
along the south boundary line of said Keidel’s South Heart Terrace 3rd 
Addition the following thirteen courses; thence South 89° 34’ 23” East 
for 40.00 feet; thence North 81° 51’ 22” East for 152.95 feet; thence 
North 52° 34’ 28” East for 77.43 feet; thence North 86° 30’ 28” East for 
204.21 feet; thence North 00° 25’ 56” West for 95.00 feet; thence North 
89° 36’ 09” East for 1328.17 feet; thence South 07° 57’ 38” West for 
238.62 feet; thence South 25° 56’ 04” East for 61.93 feet; thence South 
47° 53’ 22” East for 123.32 feet; thence South 69° 12’ 14” East for 71.14 
feet; thence North 42° 42’ 22” East for 66.01 feet; thence South 47° 17’ 
38” East for 104.04 feet to the southeast corner of said Keidel’s South 
Heart Terrace 3rd Addition; thence South 40° 31’ 50” West for 219.38 
feet; thence South 43° 49’ 05” East for 113.41 feet; thence South 04° 43’ 
37” East for 124.14 feet to a point on the south boundary of 
Government Lot 3 of Section 3, T138N-R81W; thence South 89° 45’ 55” 
West along said south boundary line for 683.89 feet to the northeast 
corner of the SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of said section 3; thence South 00° 15’ 
03” West along the east boundary line of said SW ¼ for 617.67 feet; 

Res. and Ord. No. 1  



thence North 89° 28’ 39” West for 509.15 feet; thence South 40° 14’ 45” 
West for 357.79 feet; thence North 68° 40’ 57” West for 242.86 feet to a 
point of a curve to the right having a radius of 390.00 feet; thence along 
said curve to the right (the chord of which bears South 66° 00’ 16” West 
102.85 feet) an arc length of 103.15 feet to the P.T. (point of tangency) 
of said curve to the right; thence South 73° 34’ 52” West for 84.13 feet 
to the P.C. (point of curvature) of a curve to the right having a radius of 
393.00 feet; thence along said curve to the right (the chord of which 
bears South 81° 47’ 26” West 111.38 feet) an arc length of 111.76 feet 
to the P.T. of said curve to the right; thence South 90° West for 76.69 
feet to a point on the west boundary line of said Section 3; thence North 
00° 25’ 37” East for 1491.42 feet to the point of beginning.  Said tract of 
land contains 55.56 acres, more or less.   
  

Section 2.  Notice.  The proper officials of the city are hereby directed to publish a copy of this ordinance 
in the Mandan News, the official newspaper, for two successive weeks and take such further action as 
they may deem necessary or desirable. 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       President, Board of City Commissioners 
Attest: 
 
____________________________________ 
City Administrator 
 
Publication Date:      ________6/13/2014_________  
First Consideration:      ________6/30/2014_________  
Second Consideration and Final Passage:   ________7/8/2014_________  
Publication Dates:      _______  7/18/2014________  
Recording Date:       __________________________  
 
 
 
 



 


	Agenda July 15, 2014
	Minutes June 30, 2014
	Bid Street Imp. D190 Project 2014-02 (Keidel's South Heart Terrace 3rd Addn.)
	Rezone Lot 2-4, Block 1 Lakewood Commercial
	American Foundation for Suicide Prevention games of chance at Prairie West Golf Course  - July 17, 2014
	Pledge of Securities reports
	Horse Race ND site authorization at Bar M Steakhouse
	Revised Board doc for 5-yr. Ad Valorem for Creative Construction
	5-Year Ad Valorem for Impr. to Existing Comm. Bldg. - Creative Construction
	Approve ESA amendment with Wenck for Design of Roughriders D195
	Street repair work on 37th Ave. NW & overlay on Old Red Trail
	MGF Recommendation Storefront 306 W Main
	MGF 306 W Main application - Kostelecky
	Engineering Agreement with AE2S for 2014 Water System Improvements
	2014 Water System Improvement AE2S Agreement
	Commission Portfolio Assignments
	Ord. 1186 only - Annexation Keidel's



